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LEAGUE ASSOCIATION of RISK MANAGEMENT

NOTICE

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE LEAGUE ASSOCIATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT (LARM)
Tuesday, March 1, 2022, 1:30 p.m. CT/12:30 p.m. MT

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on Tuesday, March 1, 2022, at 1:30 p.m. CT/12:30 p.m.
MT, the League Association of Risk Management (LARM), will hold a LARM Board
of Directors meeting at the Cornhusker Marriott Hotel, Grand Ballroom, B and C,
333 South 13" Street, Lincoln, Nebraska. An agenda of subjects known at this
time is included with this notice, and the agenda shall be kept continually current
and readily available for public inspection at the principal office of LARM during
normal business hours at 1335 L Street, Lincoln, Nebraska. A notice of this
meeting with the agenda and other materials are available at this location with a
copy of the Open Meetings Act posted. The meeting will also be made available
by Zoom via Computer, Smart Device or Telephone-at
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88050973997 ?pwd=RTFINUw1eUQyM?29LV3FLd3BsV
DhPZz09 or via phone at 346-248-7799. The Meeting ID is 8805097 3997 and the
passcode is 615182.

On February 23, 2022, a notice of this meeting with the agenda and other
materials were sent to all LARM members and the LARM Board. Notice of this
meeting with the agenda and other materials also are available for public
inspectionat 1335 L Street, in Lincoln, Nebraska, and posted with the following
links kept continually current: an electronic copy of the agenda, all documents
being considered at the meeting, with a link to the current version of the Open
Meetings Act on LARM’s website- larmpool.org and Facebook page-
www.facebook.com/larmne.


https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88050973997?pwd=RTFlNUw1eUQyM29LV3FLd3BsVDhPZz09
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88050973997?pwd=RTFlNUw1eUQyM29LV3FLd3BsVDhPZz09

LEAGUE ASSOCIATION of RISK MANAGEMENT

AGENDA

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE LEAGUE ASSOCIATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT (LARM)
Tuesday, March 1, 2022, 1:30 p.m. CT/12:30 p.m. MT
Cornhusker Marriott Hotel - Grand Ballroom, B and C
333 South 13" Street, Lincoln, NE

In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 84, Article 14 of the Reissue

Revised Statutes of the State of Nebraska 1943, as amended, one copy of all

reproducible written materials to be discussed is available to the public at the meeting and at
the links below for examination and copying. The LARM Board may pass motions to go into
closed session on agenda items pursuant to the requirements of the Open Meetings Act.

You also may join the meeting by Zoom via Computer, Smart Device or Telephone
https://usO06web.zoom.us/j/88050973997?pwd=RTFINUw1eUQyM?29LV3FLd3BsVDhPZz09 or
via phone at 346-248-7799. The Meeting ID is 880 5097 3997 and the passcode is 615182.

Officials of LARM members and members of the public may comment on agenda items or listen
to the Board Meeting; however, if the Board votes to hold a closed session pursuant to the
Open Meetings Act, officials of LARM members and members of the public may not comment
or listen during that time.


https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88050973997?pwd=RTFlNUw1eUQyM29LV3FLd3BsVDhPZz09

1. Call meeting to order:

a. 1:30p.m. CT/12:30 p.m. MT — Hickman Mayor Doug Hanson, Chair of the LARM Board, will
call the meeting to order.

b. Roll call.

c. Indicate that on February 23, 2022, a notice of this meeting with the agenda and other
materials were sent to all LARM members and the LARM Board. Notice of this meeting with
the agenda and other materials were available for public inspectionat 1335 L Street, in
Lincoln, Nebraska, and also posted with the following links kept continually current: an
electronic copy of the agenda and all documents being considered at the meeting, with a link
to the current version of the Open Meetings Act on LARM’s website- [armpool.org and
Facebook page- www.facebook.com/larmne

d. Inform the public about the location of the Open Meetings Act which is accessible to
members of the public and at www.larmpool.org along with a copy of all reproducible written
materials to be discussed at this meeting.

e. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America.

f. Public comment onany agenda item(s): Pursuant to the Open Meetings

Act, the LARM Board Chair reserves the right to limit comments on agenda items. In
accordance with the Open Meetings Act, there is no time limit on comments made by
members of the LARM Board of Directors.

2. Consider a motion as provided in Article 1, Section 1 of LARM’s Bylaws to approve LARM
Administrator Lynn Rex’s recommendation to appoint Chris Rector, City Administrator of
Holdrege, to fill the vacancy and serve the unexpired term of former City of Beaver City
Clerk/Treasurer Teresa Youngquist on the LARM Board of Directors.

- Lynn Rex, Administrator, LARM

3. Consider a motion to re-elect Doug Hanson, Mayor of Hickman, as Chairperson and
Lanette Doane, Clerk-Treasurer of Ansley, as Vice Chairperson for one-year terms as
provided in Article V, Section 1 of LARM’s Bylaws.

- Lynn Rex, Administrator, LARM

4. Consider a motion to approve the minutes of the December 1, 2021, Meeting of the LARM
Board of Directors.

- Dave Bos, Executive Director, LARM

See pages 1-6

5. Consider a motion to accept the quarterly update on LARM investments.
- Michael Maloney, Senior Portfolio Manager, US Bank
See pages 7-62


http://www.larmpool.org/
http://www.facebook.com/larmne
http://www.larmpool.org/

6. Consider a motion to accept the quarterly update on LARM financials.
- Mark Weaver, Director of Financial Reporting, Sedgwick Risk Pooling Services
See pages 63-83

7. Consider a motion to accept a report on the current state of the property reinsurance
market.

- Justin Swarbrick, Senior Vice-President, Alliant Insurance Services, Inc.

See pages 84-97

8. Public disclosure of release and settlement agreement between Light of the World Gospel
Ministries, Inc. and the Village of Walthill and the League Association of Risk Management in
consideration of payment of the total sum of $500,000 to provide release and discharge to
the Village of Walthill and the League Association of Risk Management for a liability claim, in
compliance with Nebraska Revised Statute 84-713.

See pages 98-151

- Dave Bos, Executive Director, LARM

9. Public disclosure of release and settlement agreement between Traci Hansen and Kurt
Hansen and the Village of Wolbach and the League Association of Risk Management in
consideration of payment of the total sum of $225,000 to provide release and discharge to
the Village of Wolbach and the League Association of Risk Management for a liability claim,
in compliance with Nebraska Revised Statute 84-713.

See pages 152-158

- Dave Bos, Executive Director, LARM

10. Consider a motion to go into closed session to protect the public interest to receive an
update regarding open LARM claims and litigation.

- Andy Barry, Cline Williams

- Trent Sidders, Cline Williams

- Dave Bos, Executive Director, LARM

-John Baum, Litigation Claims Manager, Sedgwick Risk Pooling Services

11. Discuss the date for the next meeting of the LARM Board of Directors.
- Lynn Rex, Administrator, LARM

- Dave Bos, Executive Director, LARM

12. Consider a motion to adjourn.



MINUTES
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE LEAGUE ASSOCIATIONOF RISK MANAGEMENT
Wednesday, Dec. 1, 2021, 11:00 a.m. CT/10:00 a.m. MT
Cornhusker Marriott Hotel — Grand Ballroom, B and C
333 S 13t Street, Lincoln NE

A Meeting of the League Association of Risk Management (LARM) Board of Directors
was held December 1, 2021, at 11:00 a.m. CT/10:00 a.m. MT in the Grand Ballroom, B
& C at the Cornhusker Marriott Hotel at 333 S 13t" Street in Lincoln, Nebraska.

(AGENDA ITEM #1) Call to Order. At 11:01 a.m. CT, LARM Board Chair Mayor Doug
Hanson, called the Meeting to order.

The roll call was read with the following voting Board Members present: Connie Jo Beck,
Clerk/Deputy Treasurer, City of St. Paul; Pam Buethe, Board Member, Sarpy County SID
#29; Lanette Doane, Clerk/Treasurer, Village of Ansley; Mayor Don Groesser, City of
Ralston; Mayor Doug Hanson, City of Hickman; Melissa Harrell,
Administrator/Treasurer, City of Wahoo; Jo Leyland, Administrator/Clerk/Treasurer, City
of Imperial; Tom Ourada, Administrator, City of Crete; Sandra Schendt, Clerk/Treasurer,
City of Nelson; Mayor Joey Spellerberg, City of Fremont; and Mayor Deb VanMatre,
City of Gibbon.

At the time of roll call: 11 voting Board Members were present; 4 were absent (LeAnn
Brown, Clerk/Treasurer, City of Oshkosh; Mayor Tony Kaufman, City of Gering; Mayor
Josh Moenning, City of Norfolk and Teresa Youngquist, Clerk/Treasurer, City of Beaver
City). Ex-officio (non-voting) Board Member L. Lynn Rex, Executive Director of the
League of Nebraska Municipalities and Administrator of LARM was present; ex-officio
(non-voting) Board Member Mayor Paul Lambert, City of Plattsmouth, and President of
the League of Nebraska Municipalities, was absent. Teresa Youngquist participated via
Zoom but was unable to vote due to not being able to attend the meeting in-person.

Other participants included: LARM — Dave Bos (via Zoom), Tracy Juranek, Diane Becker,
Elizabeth Becker, Fred Wiebelhaus, Randy Peters, Drew Cook, Nate Fox and Clint
Simmons; League of Nebraska Municipalities — Shirley Riley; US Bank — Mike
Maloney; Lamson Dugan & Murray — Jason Grams; Cline Williams Law Firm -
representing LARM, Andy Barry and Trent Sidders; Sedgwick (LARM'’s third party
administrator) — Chris Cadwell, Mark Weaver and John Baum.

Board Chair Mayor Doug Hanson indicated that on November 23, 2021, notice of this
Meeting with the agenda and other materials was sent to all LARM members and the
LARM Board. Notice of this Meeting with the agenda and other materials was available
for public inspection at 1335 L Street in Lincoln, Nebraska, and also was posted with the
following links kept continually current: an electronic copy of the agenda and all



documents being considered at the meeting, with a link to the current Open Meetings Act
on LARM’s website — larmpool.org and Facebook page- www.facebook.com/larmne.

Board Chair Mayor Doug Hanson stated in accordance with Chapter 84, Article 14 of the
Reissue Revised Statutes of the State of Nebraska 1943, as amended, one copy of all
reproducible written materials to be discussed was available to the public at this meeting
for examination. The Open Meetings Act was posted in the meeting room and was
accessible to members of the public. Chair Mayor Doug Hanson informed the public about
the location of the Open Meetings Act posted in the meeting room and stated that the
LARM Board may pass motions to go into closed session on any agenda item pursuant
to the requirements of the Open Meetings Act.

The pledge of allegiance to the United States of America was recited.

Board Chair Mayor Doug Hanson said that public comment on any agenda item(s):
Pursuant to the Open Meetings Act, the LARM Board Chair reserves the right to limit
comments on agenda items. In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, there is no time
limit on comments made by members of the LARM Board of Directors.

(AGENDA ITEM #2) Consider a motion to approve the minutes of the September 22,
2021, Meeting of the LARM Board of Directors. (Presented by Dave Bos, Executive
Director, LARM). Jo Leyland moved, seconded by Pam Buethe to approve the minutes
of the September 22,2021, Meeting of the LARM Board of Directors. Chair Mayor Doug
Hanson asked if there was any other discussion; there was none. Roll call vote. Ayes:
Beck, Buethe, Doane, Groesser, Hanson, Harrell, Leyland, Ourada, Schendt, Spellerberg
and VanMatre. Nays: None. Abstentions: None. Absent: Brown, Kaufman, Moenning and
Youngquist. Motion carried: 11 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions and 4 absent.

(AGENDA ITEM #3) Consider a motion to accept the resolutions and/or minutes of
the respective governing bodies of the following individuals to approve them to
serve as a candidate for or a member of the LARM Board by the governing body of
the participating member. (These members were elected at the September 22, 2021,
Annual Members’ Meeting of LARM to a three-year term on the LARM Board beginning
on January 1, 2022):

Tom Ourada, Administrator of the City of Crete

Sandra Schendt, Clerk/Treasurer of the City of Nelson

Deb VanMatre, Mayor of the City of Gibbon

Pamela Buethe, Board Member of the Sarpy County SID #29

Connie Jo Beck, Clerk/Deputy Treasurer of the City of St. Paul
(Presented by Dave Bos, Executive Director, LARM and Lynn Rex, LARM Administrator)
Lanette Doane moved, seconded by Mayor Don Groesser to accept the resolutions
and/or minutes of the respective governing bodies of the following individuals to approve
them to serve as a candidate for or a member of the LARM Board by the governing body
of the participating member. (These members were elected at the September 22, 2021,



Annual Members’ Meeting of LARM to a three-year term on the LARM Board beginning
on January 1, 2022):

Tom Ourada, Administrator of the City of Crete

Sandra Schendt, Clerk/Treasurer of the City of Nelson

Deb VanMatre, Mayor of the City of Gibbon

Pamela Buethe, Board Member of the Sarpy County SID #29

Connie Jo Beck, Clerk of the City of St. Paul
Chair Mayor Doug Hanson asked if there was any discussion; there was none. Roll call
vote. Ayes: Beck, Buethe, Doane, Groesser, Hanson, Harrell, Leyland, Ourada, Schendt,
Spellerberg and VanMatre. Nays: None. Abstentions: None. Absent: Brown, Kaufman,
Moenning and Youngquist. Motion carried: 11 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions and 4
absent.

(AGENDA ITEM #4) Consider a motion to accept the quarterly update on LARM
investments. (Presented by Michael Maloney, Senior Portfolio Manager, US Bank).
Mayor Deb VanMatre moved, seconded by Pam Buethe to accept the quarterly update
on LARM investments. Chair Mayor Doug Hanson asked if there was any discussion;
there was none. Roll call vote. Ayes: Beck, Buethe, Doane, Groesser, Hanson, Harrell,
Leyland, Ourada, Schendt, Spellerberg and VanMatre. Nays: None. Abstentions: None.
Absent: Brown, Kaufman, Moenning and Youngquist. Motion carried: 11 ayes, 0 nays,
0 abstentions and 4 absent.

(AGENDA ITEM #5) Consider a motion to accept the quarterly update on LARM
financials. (Presented by Mark Weaver, CPA, Director of Financial Reporting,
Sedgwick). Melissa Harrell moved, seconded by Sandra Schendt to accept the quarterly
update on LARM financials. Roll call vote. Ayes: Beck, Buethe, Doane, Groesser,
Hanson, Harrell, Leyland, Ourada, Schendt, Spellerberg and VanMatre. Nays: None.
Abstentions: None. Absent. Brown, Kaufman, Moenning and Youngquist. Motion
carried: 11 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions and 4 absent.

(AGENDA ITEM #6) Consider a motion to go into closed session to protect the
public interest to receive an update regarding open LARM claims and litigation.
(Presented by Andy Barry and Trent Sidders, Cline Wiliams; Dave Bos, Executive
Director, LARM and John Baum, Litigation Claims Manager, Sedgwick Risk Pooling
Services). Jo Leyland moved, seconded by Lanette Doane to go into closed session to
protect the public interest to receive an update regarding open LARM claims and litigation
with the following joining the LARM Board in closed session: Dave Bos, Tracy Juranek,
Fred Wiebelhaus, John Baum, Jason Grams, Andy Barry and Trent Sidders. Roll call vote
Ayes:. Beck, Buethe, Doane, Groesser, Hanson, Harrell, Leyland, Ourada, Schendt,
Spellerberg and VanMatre. Nays: None. Abstentions: None. Absent: Brown, Kaufman,
Moenning and Youngquist. Motion carried: 11 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions and 4
absent.

(AGENDA ITEM #7) Consider a motion to go into closed session to protect the
public interest to receive legal advice from Jason Grams of Lamson Dugan &



Murray LLP on whether to consent to jointly retain Cline Williams with the League
of Nebraska Municipalities to establish new and/or update existing agreements
between LARM and the League, if the League Executive Board consents to jointly
retain Cline Williams with LARM. (Presented by Jason Grams, Lamson Dugan &
Murray; Andy Barry and Trent Sidders, Cline Williams and Dave Bos, Executive Director,
LARM). Jo Leyland moved, seconded by Sandra Schendt to go into closed session to
protect the public interest to receive legal advice from Jason Grams of Lamson Dugan &
Murray LLP on whether to consent to jointly retain Cline Wiliams with the League of
Nebraska Municipalities to establish new and/or update existing agreements between
LARM and the League, if the League Executive Board consents to jointly retain Cline
Williams with LARM with the following joining the LARM Board in closed session: Dave
Bos, Tracy Juranek, Fred Wiebelhaus, Jason Grams, Andy Barry and Trent Sidders.
Chair Mayor Doug Hanson asked if there was any discussion; there was none. Roll call
vote Ayes: Beck, Buethe, Doane, Groesser, Hanson, Harrell, Leyland, Ourada, Schendt,
Spellerberg and VanMatre. Nays: None. Abstentions: None. Absent: Brown, Kaufman,
Moenning and Youngquist. Motion carried: 11 ayes, 0 nays, O abstentions and 4
absent.

Chair Mayor Doug Hanson repeated the first motion again to go into closed session to
protect the public interest to receive an update regarding open LARM claims and litigation
with the following joining the LARM Board in closed session: Dave Bos, Tracy Juranek,
Fred Wiebelhaus, John Baum, Jason Grams, Andy Barry and Trent Sidders.

Chair Mayor Doug Hanson repeated the second motion again to go into closed session
to protect the public interest to receive legal advice from Jason Grams of Lamson Dugan
& Murray LLP on whether to consent to jointly retain Cline Wiliams with the League of
Nebraska Municipalities to establish new and/or update existing agreements between
LARM and the League, if the League Executive Board consents to jointly retain Cline
Williams with LARM with the following joining the LARM Board in closed session: Dave
Bos, Tracy Juranek, Fred Wiebelhaus, Jason Grams, Andy Barry and Trent Sidders. As
of 11:43 a.m. the Board was in closed session.

At 12:51 p.m., Chair Mayor Doug Hanson restated that the reason the Board went into
closed session was to protect the public interest to receive an update regarding open
LARM claims and litigation with the following joining the LARM Board in closed session:
Dave Bos, Tracy Juranek, Fred Wiebelhaus, Jason Grams, Andy Barry and Trent
Sidders. He went on to state that there was no action taken in the closed session on this
matter.

Chair Mayor Doug Hanson restated that the other reason the Board went into closed
session was to protect the public interest to receive legal advice from Jason Grams of
Lamson Dugan & Murray LLP on whether to consent to jointly retain Cline Williams with
the League of Nebraska Municipalities to establish new and/or update existing
agreements between LARM and the League, if the League Executive Board consents to
jointly retain Cline Williams with LARM with the following joining the LARM Board in closed
session: Dave Bos, Tracy Juranek, Fred Wiebelhaus, Jason Grams, Andy Barry and



Trent Sidders. He went on to say that there was no action taken in the closed session on
this matter and that the Board was back in open session.

(AGENDA ITEM #8) Consider a motion to consent to joint representation by Cline
Williams with the League of Nebraska Municipalities to establish new and/or update
existing agreements between LARM and the League, if the League Executive Board
consents to jointly retain Cline Williams with LARM. (Presented by Dave Bos,
Executive Director, LARM). Mayor Don Groesser moved, seconded by Jo Leyland to
consent to joint representation by Cline Wiliams with the League of Nebraska
Municipalities to establish new and/or update existing agreements between LARM and
the League, if the League Executive Board consents to jointly retain Cline Williams with
LARM. Roll call vote. Ayes: Beck, Buethe, Doane, Groesser, Hanson, Harrell, Leyland,
Ourada, Schendt, Spellerberg and VanMatre. Nays: None. Abstentions: None. Absent:
Brown, Kaufman, Moenning and Youngquist. Motion carried: 11 ayes, 0 nays, O
abstentions and 4 absent.

(AGENDA ITEM #9) Discuss the date for the next meeting of the LARM Board of
Directors. (Presented by Lynn Rex, Administrator and Dave Bos, Executive Director,
LARM).

(AGENDA ITEM #10) Motion to adjourn. At 12:59 p.m., Pam Buethe moved, seconded
by Connie Jo Beck to adjourn. Chair Mayor Doug Hanson asked if there was any
discussion; there was none. Roll call vote. Ayes: Beck, Buethe, Doane, Groesser,
Hanson, Harrell, Leyland, Ourada, Schendt, Spellerberg and VanMatre. Nays: None.
Abstentions: None. Absent: Brown, Kaufman, Moenning and Youngquist. Motion
carried: 11 ayes, 0 nays, O abstentions and 4 absent.

Approved on:

ATTEST:

Elizabeth Becker
Customer Service Representative
League Association of Risk Management

L. Lynn Rex
LARM Administrator



Ex-Officio, Non-Voting, LARM Board Member
Executive Director of the League of Nebraska Municipalities
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LEAGUE ASSOCIATION of RISK MANAGEMENT

NOTICE

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE LEAGUE ASSOCIATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT (LARM)
Wednesday, December 1, 2021, 11:00 a.m. CT/10:00a.m. MT

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on Wednesday, December 1, 2021, at 11:00 a.m.
CT/10:00 a.m. MT, the League Association of Risk Management (LARM), will hold
a LARM Board of Directors meeting at the Cornhusker Marriott Hotel, Grand
Ballroom, B and C, 333 South 13" Street, Lincoln, Nebraska. An agenda of subjects
known at this time is included with this notice, and the agenda shall be kept
continually current and readily available for public inspection at the principal
office of LARM during normal business hours at 1335 L Street, Lincoln, Nebraska.
A notice of this meeting with the agenda and other materials are available at this
location with a copy of the Open Meetings Act posted. The meeting will also be

made available by Zoom via Computer, Smart Device or Telephone
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87298755453? pwd=ZVJCSytOYXhUdFdBNnQvU1RLQNnQruT09

orvia phone at 1-346-248-7799. The Meeting ID is 872 9875 5453 and the
passcode is 526730.

On November 23, 2021, a notice of this meeting with the agenda and other
materials were sent to all LARM members and the LARM Board. Notice of this
meeting with the agenda and other materials also are available for public
inspectionat 1335 L Street, in Lincoln, Nebraska, and posted with the following
links kept continually current: an electronic copy of the agenda, all documents
being considered at the meeting, with a link to the current version of the Open
Meetings Act on LARM’s website- larmpool.org and Facebook page-
www.facebook.com/larmne.


https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87298755453?pwd=ZVJCSyt0YXhUdFdBNnQvU1RLQnQrUT09

League Association of Risk

Management
March 1, 2022

Investment products and services are:

‘ NOT A DEPOSIT | NOT FDIC INSURED ‘ MAY LOSE VALUE ‘ NOT BANK GUARANTEED ‘ NOT INSURED BY ANY FEDERAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY ‘




Your U.S. Bank Team

Michael T. Maloney Craig A. Dana

Senior Portfolio Manager Vice President

Institutional Asset Management Relationship Manager
563-663-2640 Institutional Trust & Custody
Michael.Maloney@usbank.com 515-245-6257

Craig.Dana@usbank.com
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LEAGUE ASSOC OF RISK MANAGEMENT
Period Ending: 01/31/2022

Selected Period Performance

Year Inception
to Date to Date
Market Value 1 Month 3 Months (1 Month) 1Year 3Years b5Years 11/01/2014

Total Portfolio Gross of Fees 20,292,015
Total Portfolio Net of Fees 20,292,015
Total Fixed Income 17,875,017
Gov/Agency Bonds 17,630,220 -1.04 -1.38 -1.04 -2.33 .57 .91
FTSE 1 Year Treasury Benchmark -.26 -.39 -.26 -.35 1.39 1.35 1.08
FTSE 1-3 Year Treasury Index -.66 -91 -.66 -1.26 1.69 1.44 1.18
Taxable Fixed Other 244,797 -.76 -.93 -.76 -2.11
Total Cash and Equivalents 2,416,998
FTSE 1 Month Treasury Bill Index .00 .02 .00 .04 .82 1.05 .76
FTSE 6 Month Treasury Bill Index .01 .02 .01 .06 1.01 1.19 .90

Pending Cash

For performance and rate of return methodologies, as well as other important information, please refer to the Appendix/Disclosures provided.
Investment products and services are: @ ban m O

NOTADEPQOSIT ¢ NOT FDIC INSURED e MAY LOSE VALUE e NOT BANK GUARANTEED e NOT INSURED BY ANY FEDERAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY



LEAGUE ASSOC OF RISK MANAGEMENT
Period Ending: 01/31/2022

History of Asset Growth Graphs

Annual Portfolio Values

Oct 2016- Oct 2017- Oct 2018- Oct 2019- Oct 2020- Oct 2021-
Consolidated Sep 2017 Sep 2018 Sep 2019 Sep 2020 Sep 2021 Jan 2022

Beginning Portfolio Value 11,853,807 11,853,807 14,923,367 13,380,140 13,922,983 12,945,684 13,999,890

Contributions 34,750,000 6,300,000 4,750,000 4,600,000 3,700,000 7,900,000 7,500,000
Withdrawals -26,906,682  -3,274,225  -6,405,776  -4,574,303  -4,921,961 -6,822,895 -907,523
Income Earned 1,024,496 162,643 230,600 304,987 209,553 87,451 29,262
Gain/Loss -429,607 -118,859 -118,051 212,158 35,109 -110,350 -329,614
Ending Portfolio Value 20,292,015 14,923,367 13,380,140 13,922,983 12,945,684 13,999,890 20,292,015
Total Return .75 .31 .79 3.14 1.52 =12 -1.60
Principal -.44 -.69 -.64 1.23 .18 -.63 -1.75
Income 1.19 1.00 1.44 1.89 1.34 .52 .15
Allocation Over Time Ending Market Values Over Time
% B Total Fixed Income M Total Cash Eqv $
100 22M
80 20M
60 18M
16M
40
14M
; C | e
12M
0 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

NOTADEPOSIT ¢ NOT FDIC INSURED e MAY LOSE VALUE e NOT BANK GUARANTEED e NOT INSURED BY ANY FEDERAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY

For performance and rate of return methodologies, as well as other important information, please refer to the Appendix/Disclosures provided.
Investment products and services are: @ ban m 1



(Ebank LEAGUE ASSOC OF RISK MANAGEMENT

Portfolio Overview

Holdings Method: Direct Report Date: 01/31/2022
Portfolio Summary Portfolio Asset Allocation
Inv. Objective All Fixed/Non Taxable
Total Portfolio Value $20,263,491
Net Realized Cap Gains YTD $0 88%
Annual Income Projected $97,908
aa oeone - Spsesie o
Number of Securities 24 Invested Total $20,263,491 100.00%
Portfolio Mgr. Michael T. Maloney

Fixed Income Cash

Portfolio Model Allocation
B Portfolio

90% -

80%

70%

60% -

50% -

40%

30%

20%

Cash Investment
Equivalents Grade

© 2019 FactSet Research Systems Inc. All rights reserved. Past Performance is no guarantee of future results. Holdings Date: 1/31/2022
Not A Deposit | Not FDIC Insured | May Lose Value | Not Bank Guaranteed | Not Insured By Any Federal Government Agency
Material is based on data from sources deemed to be reliable, accuracy/completeness is not guaranteed. 1 2



(Ebank

LEAGUE ASSOC OF RISK MANAGEMENT

Fixed Income Overview

Holdings Method: Direct

Report Date: 01/31/2022

Fixed Income Summary

Fixed Income Asset Allocation

Inv. Objective

Total Fixed Income Value
Current Yield

Annual Income Projected
Number of Securities

Portfolio Mgr.

Fixed Income Sector Exposures

All Fixed/Non Taxable
$17,846,510

.55%

$97,788

23 Investment Grade $17,846,510 100.00%

Michael T. Maloney

B Investment Grade

Fixed Income Market Value

63%

Government Agency $11,169,838 63.00%
Treasury $6,432,118 36.00% 1%
Corporate $244,555 1.00% °

36%

B Government Agency Treasury M Corporate

© 2019 FactSet Research Systems Inc. All rights reserved. Past Performance is no guarantee of future results.
Not A Deposit | Not FDIC Insured | May Lose Value | Not Bank Guaranteed | Not Insured By Any Federal Government Agency
Material is based on data from sources deemed to be reliable, accuracy/completeness is not guaranteed.
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LEAGUE ASSOC OF RISK MANAGEMENT
Bond Detail

Holdings Method: Direct Report Date: 01/31/2022

Bond Characteristics

Bond Effective Maturity

Avg. Coupon (%)
Current Yield (%)

Yield To Maturity

Yield to Call/Worst (%)
Eff. Maturity (Yrs)
Effective Duration

Avg. Quality

# of Securities

Bond Quality Distribution

Portfolio
.54

.55
1.29
1.29
2.83
2.73

23

% Avail

100
100
100
100
100
100

96
100

40

354
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25+
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15
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Bond Duration Distribution
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LEAGUE ASSOC OF RISK MANAGEMENT

Holdings Method: Direct

Total
Cash
Cash Equivalents

US BANK MONEY MARKET (MMDA) IT&C

Fixed Income
Investment Grade
Corporate

BMW BK NORTH C D

Government Agency
0.250% 8/24/23

0.220% 9/08/23
0.375% 7/29/24
0.420% 9/17/24

0.375% 2/25/25

0.550% 8/26/25

0.600% 8/29/25
0.375% 9/23/25

0.580% 10/28/25

0.500% 11/07/25

0.570% 11/25/25
0.600% 11/25/25

0.650% 12/10/25
0.500% 2/10/26

FHLMC MTN
FFCBDEB
FHLMC MTN
FHLMC MTN
FHLBDEB
FFCBDEB
FNMA
FHLMC MTN
FNMA MTN
FNMA
FHLBDEB
FHLMC MTN
FNMA
FHLBDEB

Treasury
U S TREASURY NT

U S TREASURY NT
U S TREASURY NT
U S TREASURY NT
U S TREASURY NT

0.350% 10/23/24

0.125% 11/30/22
0.125% 12/31/22
0.125% 12/15/23
2.375% 2/29/24
0.375% 4/15/24

Symbol

991070749

05580AXH2

3137EAEV7
3133EL6J8
3134GW4X1
3134GWSW7
3130ALB52
3130AJZA0
3136G4X24
3137EAEX3
3135GA2A8
3135G06G3
3130AKGD2
3134GXCH5
3135G06J7
3130AKW51

91282CAX9
91282CBD2
91282CBA8
9128286G0
91282CBV2

% of
Port.

100.0
11.93

11.93
11.93

88.07
88.07

1.21
1.21

55.12
4.87

4.88
3.62
3.62
4.77
3.57
3.58
3.55
3.58
4.75
3.59
4.79
3.57
2.38

31.74
4.91

4.91
4.84
3.79
2.42

Price

1.00

97.82

98.74
98.80
97.88
97.81
96.68
96.33
96.74
95.92
96.68
96.25
96.98
97.12
96.53
96.47

99.53
99.41
98.11
102.41
98.16

Shares/
Units

2,416,981

250,000

1,000,000
1,000,000
750,000
750,000
1,000,000
750,000
750,000
750,000
750,000
1,000,000
750,000
1,000,000
750,000
500,000

1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
750,000
500,000
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Portfolio
Value

20,263,491
2,416,981
2,416,981
2,416,981
17,846,510
17,846,510

244,555
244,555

11,169,838
987,420

988,000
734,108
733,538
966,760
722,498
725,558
719,408
725,115
962,470
727,373
971,220
723,998
482,375
6,432,118
995,270
994,100
981,130
768,105
490,780

Cost
Basis

20,636,487
2,416,981
2,416,981
2,416,981
18,219,506
18,219,506

249,500
249,500

11,490,612
998,958

998,989
749,775
750,000
1,000,000
749,850
752,138
746,224
749,850
996,440
748,500
1,000,000
749,888
500,000
6,479,395
996,523
995,586
991,445
750,059
500,801

Unrealized
Gain/Loss

-372,996
.00

.00
.00

-372,996
-372,996
-4,945
-4,945
-320,774
-11,538
-10,989
-15,668
-16,463
-33,240
-27,353
-26,581
-26,816
-24,735
-33,970
21,128
-28,780
-25,890
17,625
-47,277
1,253
-1,486
-10,315
18,046
-10,021

Portfolio Holdings
Report Date: 01/31/2022
Projected

Current Annual
Yield Income
0.48 97,908
0.00 121
0.00 121
0.00 121
0.55 97,788
0.55 97,788
0.36 875
0.36 875
0.47 52,850
0.25 2,500
0.22 2,200
0.38 2,813
0.43 3,150
0.39 3,750
0.57 4,125
0.62 4,500
0.39 2,813
0.60 4,350
0.52 5,000
0.59 4,275
0.62 6,000
0.67 4,875
0.52 2,500
0.69 44,062
0.13 1,250
0.13 1,250
0.13 1,250
2.32 17,813
0.38 1,875

Holdings Date: 1/31/2022
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LEAGUE ASSOC OF RISK MANAGEMENT

Holdings Method: Direct

Symbol
U S TREASURY NT  0.750% 11/15/24 91282CDH1
U S TREASURY NT  0.750% 4/30/26 91282CBWO0
U S TREASURY NT  1.125% 10/31/26 91282CDG3

% of
Port.

4.85
1.19
4.82

Price
98.34

96.64
97.77

Shares/
Units

1,000,000
250,000
1,000,000

© 2019 FactSet Research Systems Inc. All rights reserved. Past Performance is no guarantee of future results.
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Portfolio
Value

983,440
241,593
977,700

Cost
Basis

998,086
249,434
997,461

Portfolio Holdings

Report Date: 01/31/2022

Projected

Unrealized Current Annual
Gain/Loss Yield Income
-14,646 0.76 7,500
-7,841 0.78 1,875
-19,761 1.15 11,250

Holdings Date: 1/31/2022
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LEAGUE ASSOCIATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT

INVESTMENT POLICY

Purpose. The purpose of this document is to establish the investment policy for the
League Association of Risk Management, hereafter called LARM, and to provide
guidance to the LARM Board, the Investment Committee, the LARM Administrator, and,
if utilized, the Investment Manager or Custodian Bank pertaining to investment
objectives and guidelines.

Goal. The overall investment goal of LARM is to obtain a high rate of return on its
portfolio assets, with a minimal risk, abiding by the appropriate statutes governing the
investment of these funds and complying with the responsibility to LARM members.

Priority Listing of Objectives.
A.  Safety of Principal. Avoidance of financial risk or compromise of the financial
integrity of the portfolio.

B. Liquidity. Provide sufficient liquidity for the payment of claims and expenses.

This is accomplished by structuring the portfolio so that securities mature
concurrent with cash needs to meet anticipated demands (static liquidity). Furthermore,
since all possible cash demands cannot be anticipated, the portfolio should consist largely
of securities with active secondary and resale markets (dynamic liquidity). A portion of
the portfolio may be placed in money market mutual funds which offer same day
liquidity for short term funds.

C. Earn a High Rate of Return. Earn the highest rate of return with minimal risk.
However, return on investment is of secondary importance compared to the safety and
liquidity objectives described above. The core of investments are limited to relatively
low risk securities in anticipation of earning a fair return relative to the risk being
assumed.

D. Diversification of Assets. Diversify assets by both the industry and the issuer in
order to avoid undue exposure by any single industry or issuer.

E.  All investments of LARM shall be in compliance with the Nebraska Insurer’s
Investment Act at all times.

Procedure.
A. LARM Board. The Board shall:
1. Review and approve, at least quarterly, all purchases and disposals of
investments.
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2. Review, at least quarterly, whether all investments have been made in
accordance with the Investment Policy.

3. Authorize the Investment Committee, under the general supervision of the
LARM Board Chair, to manage the investments of LARM, either
independently or through the utilization of the LARM Administrator or an
Investment Manager or Custodian Bank.

4. Review the investment policy on an annual basis.

Investment Committee. The Investment Committee shall:

1. Receive and review summary reports on the investment portfolio, investment
activities, and investment practices in order to determine whether the
investment activity is consistent with the Investment Policy.

2. Provide such summary reports at least quarterly to the LARM Board for their
review and approval.

3. Review and recommend revision of the Investment Policy to the LARM
Board, as appropriate.

4. Review the Investment Manager or Custodian bank’s performance and fees at
least every 3 years.

LARM Administrator. The LARM Administrator shall:

1. Notify the Investment Committee of matters that bear upon the proper
investment of the portfolio including pertinent financial, legal, or other
information involving the investment of the portfolio and changes in
investment objectives.

2. Meet regularly with the Investment Committee to report on progress of the
portfolio.

Investment Manager or Custodian Bank. If utilized, the Investment Manager or

Custodian Bank shall:

1. Meet regularly with the Investment Committee to report on progress of the
portfolio.

2. Provide reports monthly to the Investment Committee.

3. Provide information concerning market trends and investment strategies.

V. Investment Guidelines.

A

Regulatory Limitations. The investment guidelines and restrictions as set forth by
the Insurers Investment Act (Nebraska Revised Statutes Section 44-5101 et seq.)
shall be adhered to at all times by the Board, the Investment Committee, the
LARM Administrator, and any Investment Manager or Custodian Bank utilized
by the Investment Committee in exercise of their discretion.

Prudence. The standard of prudence to be used for managing LARM’s
investments is the “prudent investor” rule, which states, “Investments shall be
made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which
persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of

2
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their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment considering the probable
safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived.”

General Strateqgies.

1. The Investment Committee, or an Investment Manager or Custodial Bank, if
utilized, shall determine the appropriate allocation of funds among cash, cash
equivalents, and investment grade fixed income securities.

2. Capital gains and losses may be realized when, in the judgment of the
Investment Committee or its investment manager or custodian bank, if
utilized, consistent with the goals, objectives, and guidelines of this policy,
such action is in the best interest of the portfolio and will lead to a greater
long-term total rate of return.

3. Securities purchased by the Investment Committee, the LARM Administrator,
or an Investment Manager or Custodian Bank, if utilized, shall be limited in
general maturity parameters as follows:

The maximum maturity of any security at date of purchase shall not
exceed 60 months. The purchase of a security with a maturity longer
than 60 months shall be approved by the LARM Board at the next
quarterly meeting. Because of inherent difficulties in accurately
forecasting cash flow requirements, a portion of the portfolio should be
continuously invested in readily available funds such as money market
funds to ensure appropriate liquidity is maintained to meet ongoing
obligations.

Securities shall not be sold prior to maturity with the following
exceptions:

A security with declining credit may be sold early to minimize loss
of principal.

Liquidity needs of the portfolio require that the security be sold.

A security swap that would adjust the portfolio (quality, yield, or
duration) in a manner that would allow it to better fulfill the investment
objectives.

Security purchases and sales shall be made, so that at the time of purchase or
sale they do not cause, or exacerbate, non-compliance with the LARM
portfolio maturity limitations.
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4. Investments made by the Investment Committee, the LARM Administrator, or
an Investment Manager or Custodian Bank, if utilized, shall be limited
according to the following:

Asset Class Limitation*

Direct obligations of the United No Limit
States or obligations for which the

full faith and credit of the United

States is pledged for the payment

of all principal and interest

Direct obligations of any agency or ~ 25% per issuer
instrumentality of the United States

or obligations for which the full

faith and credit of any agency or

instrumentality of the United States

is pledged for the payment of all

principal and interest

Other investment grade fixed 5% per issuer
income securities

Mutual funds investing in the 5% per issuer, not to exceed 25% in
above classes total if the fund is only allowed to

invest in U.S. government
obligations or U.S. agency or
instrumentality obligations; and

invested in other classes.

*Limitations apply to the percentage of admitted assets as shown by the most recent
financial statement filed with the Nebraska Department of Insurance.

VI.  Standard of Performance. Consideration shall be given to the extent to which the
investment results are consistent with the goals and objectives as set forth in this policy.

Revised 3-23-2007; 12-16-2009; 3-1-2011; 2-26-2018
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Upfront conclusions

We recommend a more balanced portfolio orientation as capital
markets transition to policy changes

Pro-growth central bank policies, low interest rates and a liquidity-driven capital market
backdrop have provided a strong tailwind to riskier asset classes since March 2020, but
as central banks change to more restrictive policies, markets may adjust and volatility
increase, particularly if central banks become more restrictive as the economy slows.

We remain focused on two key investment horizons

The first horizon represents reopening activity (mobility, supply chain fluidity) around the
globe and how steep and long that glidepath may be. The second horizon is the “steady
state” that follows and how sustainable growth will be. We are seeing more reopening
progress, yet it remains uneven around the globe given varied COVID policies.

Inflation remains a nagging issue that could embolden a sharper
policy response and increase volatility

While we anticipate inflation to dissipate from elevated levels later this year, higher oil
prices, shelter costs and political pressure may force the U.S. Federal Reserve (Fed) to
accelerate its tightening campaign into what we anticipate to be a slowing domestic
economy over the next two quarters.
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The “wall of money” remains high, but may shrink this year

Central banks have had a massive capital market presence since 2008, helping to keep interest rates
low. The Federal Reserve has begun to slow its asset purchase program but decelerating bond
purchases is different than actively reducing accumulated holdings, which may begin for the Fed in the
year’s first half.

Total balance sheet size by major central banks

($ trillions)
$32 -
$28 Swiss National Bank
$24 - Bank of England
$20 1 Peoples Bank of China
$16 -
Bank of Japan
$12 T - y
e European Central Ban
50 | - U.S. Federal Reserve

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Sources: U.S. Bank Asset Management Group analysis, Bloomberg. Data period: January 2008 — December 31, 2021.
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Credit stresses have eased in two key market areas, which

have returned to a defined uptrend

Leveraged loans and commercial mortgage-backed securities (CMBS) are two areas we continue to
monitor for potential weakness, along with general trends in high yield. The recent decline in the CMBS
index bears watching, with COVID variants’ spread challenging return-to-office trends.

Leveraged loan and commercial mortgage-backed securities indices
(May 2006 — January 28, 2022)
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Source: Bloomberg. Data: January 1, 2006 — January 28, 2022. Returns shown represent results of market index and are not from actual investments and are shown for

ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY.
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Immediate-term focus ~~

The next few months will be about how steadfast the Fed is about
tightening policy into a slowing economy.

Low interest rates have been at least correlated with, and more like causal of, higher
asset prices. When you discount cash flows at higher interest rates, those cash flows
are less valuable. Central bank policy and interest rate follow-through are focal areas.

Inflation: Broad-based or becoming more contained?

Inflationary pressures have become a primary focus central bankers, and our more
balanced forward view hinges on central banks attempting to thwart inflation out of their
control, notably energy prices and supply chain-driven inflationary pressures.

Earnings have been the North Star for investors and companies, and
the latter remain flush with cash.

We expect ongoing earnings momentum, albeit at a slower pace than last year.
Companies have adequate cash and strong balance sheets that can withstand the mild
economic slowdown we anticipate, but all eyes will be on potentially rising borrowing
costs and liquidity trends as the Fed ceases bond buying and begins to raise interest
rates.

u.s. Ba26



The “real” issue: Real interest rates have risen off all-time low
levels, and changes here are critical for our forward views ~

10-year Treasury real interest rate (in %)
(January 2003 — January 2022)

3.5 -
3
2.5 1
2
1.5 -
1 -
0.5 A1
04— W o A | Y
-0.5 A

1 -

_1 .5 T T T
2003 2008 2013 2018 1-28-2022

Source: U.S. Bank Asset Management Group analysis, Bloomberg, U.S. Federal Reserve. Data period: January 1, 2003, to January 28, 2022.
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Market expects faster pace of Federal Reserve rate increases

Investors price in five Fed policy rate increases (“hikes”) in 2022. The markets are expecting a faster hiking
pace in 2022 relative to the last Fed projections, but a slower hiking pace in 2023 and beyond. Markets are
anticipating that the Fed will have limited ability to increase rates above 1.75 percent.

Rate hikes priced in by the market and projected by the Fed dots
8 o

7

2 —1/28/2022
—12/28/2021
® Fed dots 12/15/21

Number of expected interest rate hikes by the Fed

O . T T T T T T T T T T T
9% g% 3o} 20} ™ ™ (o) (o) © © A A
SV SV N N NZ NZ N4 N4 N N v N4
NN\ U\ U\ U VN U\ U\ U\ U\
P > P > P 3 P 5 P > P Qd

Source: U.S. Bank Asset Management Group analysis, Bloomberg data: Projected hikes through 2028.
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Inflation: Persistent and broad-based
Assessing more advanced inflationary measures

Investors often anchor on consumer and producer-level inflation via the Personal Consumption

Expenditures Index and the Consumer and Producer Price Indices, but using some additional measures

reveals inflation's reach across the economy.

Various inflation measures
(January 2003 — January 4, 2022)

W e,
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—U.S. Cyclical Core PCE Inflation
——U.S. Acyclical Core PCE Inflation
Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland Trimmed Mean CPI

Sources: U.S. Bank Asset Management Group, Bloomberg. Data as of January 28, 2022.
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Supply chain pressures are persistent, but stabilizing
shipping prices may presage improvement in 2022

Container shipping rates
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——Drewry Hong Kong-Los Angeles Container Benchmark Rate

Source: U.S. Bank Asset Management Group analysis, Bloomberg data. Data period: January 2017 — January 2021.
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Labor market is an important factor for 2022
Theme: Wage inflation is being driven by the continued shortfall in participation

U.S. labor force participation rate U.S. wage growth
Percent Atlanta Fed wage growth tracker, percent change
67 9
8 The challenges facing employers in
66 filling vacancies have turned the
LABOR FORCE 7 .
PARTICIPATION RATE tables for workers, giving them more
65 leverage in bargaining for higher 4.5 pec2)
6 g g g g
wages.
64 5 _
Median Wage Growth Tracker
\ 4 (3-month moving average % change)
63
There are a multitude Dec’21: 3
61.9-

62 | of factors keeping workers
sidelined, including COVID-19

51 | fears and caring for kids not in school . 4
or daycare. 60.2.,

60
'05 "10 "15 '20

"10 "15 ‘20

Sources: U.S. Bank Economics Group, Bloomberg, Moody’s Analytics, IHS Markit. Updated: 1/28/2022
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Upcoming policy events —

* Monetary
— Federal Reserve Open Markets Committee (FOMC) meeting: March 15-16.
— Global monetary policy — emerging markets and developed markets divergence.

— Rate hikes since July: U.K., New Zealand, Brazil, Chile, Columbia, Peru, Czech Republic,
Hungary, Poland, Romania, Russia. Royal Bank of Australia concludes asset purchase program.

« U.S. fiscal agenda

— Democrats are pursuing a strategy of passing separate parts of the Build Back Better package.

— Current budget resolution expires Feb 18, 2022. Potential extension to end of fiscal year would
be a hit to defense spending expectations.

— President Biden’s State of the Union Address: March 1, 2022.

« China policy agenda

— China's regulatory push is limited to select industries, but market concerned about a push toward
populism, expected to last into 2022.

— Lunar New Year (LNY): January 31-Feb 6, 2022.
— Beijing Winter Olympics: February 4 through 20.
— Xi’'s second term ends (and third term begins): October-November 2022.
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Financial markets # economics
U.S. Bank economic Health Check: U.S. economy
A plurality of U.S. data points are in the expansion phase, reflecting the strong reopening trajectory

across many indicators. However, we're seeing some data migrate to the lower right quadrant (above-
average growth but decelerating trend) as the recovery’s pace slows.

Recovery Expansion
v Trend above 50 v
4% of Data Points 38% of Data Points
Percentile below 50 Percentile above 50
33% of Data Points 25% of Data Points

Recession Slowdown

Sources: U.S. Bank Asset Management Group, Bloomberg. Data as of January 28, 2022. Percentages may not equal 100 due to rounding.
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Financial markets # economics
U.S. Bank economic Health Check: International developed economies

A majority of foreign developed data points plot in the recovery or expansion phases. Accommodative
monetary policy continues to support that region’s economic reopening and growth prospects. High
energy prices, supply chain challenges and the recent virus case growth surge may constrain near-term
growth.

Recovery Expansion
7 4 Trond above 50 201 4
9% of Data Points 52% of Data Points
Percentile below 50 Percentile above 50
19% of Data Points 20% of Data Points
Recession Slowdown

Sources: U.S. Bank Asset Management Group, Bloomberg. Data as of January 28, 2022. Percentages may not equal 100 due to rounding.
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Diverging lockdown policies in response to COVID
developments

Denmark becomes first EU country to lift all Covid-19
restrictions

By Scott McLean, Livvy Doherty and Lauren Kent, CNN
(© Updated 11:36 AM ET, Tue February 1, 2022

WHO warns nations about lifting
COVID-19 restrictions

BY CAROLINE VAKIL - 02/02/2210:22 AM EST
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Global Lockdown Stringency Indexes —

Oxford / Blavatnik Lockdown Stringency Indexes
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Source: U.S. Bank Asset Management Group analysis, Bloomberg data from Blavatnik School at Oxford, Data period: January 2020 — December 31, 2021.

Note: The index records the strictness of ‘lockdown style’ policies that primarily restrict people’s behavior. It is calculated using all ordinal containment and closure policy
indicators, plus an indicator recording public information campaigns. Nine total response indicators are used, including school closures, workplace closures, and travel bans, | g Bg
rescaled to a value from 0 to 100 (100 being the strictest). 36



COVID-19 case growth by region through January 31,

2022 ~

The new Omicron variant is driving a record surge in COVID-19 cases, with European cases peaking
at higher levels than the U.S. Policy responses such as vaccination progress and activity and mobility
restrictions have been uneven across foreign developed and emerging economies.

Confirmed COVID-19 cases
(Daily infection increase by region, seven-day average)
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Source: Johns Hopkins CSSE. Data as of January 31, 2022.
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U.S. COVID-19 hospitalizations have followed case growth
higher, but deaths remain lower than prior COVID cycles

Case growth is spiking in the United States and hospitalizations are also
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Source: U.S. Bank Asset Management Group analysis, Our World In Data based on Centers for Disease Control data, and Bloomberg data: January 2020 — January 2022.
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Domestic earnings are projected to trend higher in 2021 and 2022
Earnings projections reflect analysts’ optimistic assessment of a post-pandemic world.
U.S. Wealth Management S&P 500 estimate summary (as of January 28, 2022; S&P 500 level: 4,432)
Consensus Estimates Estimated Operating / Reported Earnings Per Share P/E Est. Multiple
2019 2020 2021 2022 YoY Growth
Firm 20/19 21/20 22/21 2019 2021 2022
* Bloomberg 152.3 122.5 187.2 221.0 -19.6% | 52.8% 18.1% 29.1x 23.7x 20.1x
’ g;cgg)et (Bottom’s Up- 163.1 | 1405 | 2056 | 2244 | -13.9% | 46.4% | 91% | 27.2x | 216x | 19.8x
* S&P Global 164.0 142.5 206.4 221.7 -13.1% 44 8% 7.4% 27.0x 21.5x 20.0x
Blend 159.8 | 135.1 | 199.7 | 2224 | -154% | 47.8% | 11.3% | 27.8x | 22.2x | 19.9x
Rising earnings provide valuation
: Among fourth quarter items of i
support and a basis for stocks to c? . .q 4Q Earnings Releases
trend higher. consideration: Week # of % of Total %
................................................................... * Revenue and EPS growth trends Ending Cos. __S&P 500 Reported
: : Prior 169 34% 34%
) * Inflation and price trends
 Valuations are elevated yet short _ _ o 1/31/22 112 22% 56%
of dot-com era extremes. + Evidence of margin deterioration 2/7/22 83 17% 73%
o _ «  Timing of supply chain normalcy 2/14/22 60 12% 85%
* Rising earnings, moderate . Guidance 2/21/22 56 11% 96%
inflation and low interest rates 2/28/22 18 4% 100%

prOVIde valuation SUppOft. Source: Bloomberg, 1/30/22.

Source: U.S. Bank Asset Management Group, Bloomberg. Data as of January 28, 2021.
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Large company impact (returns)

The attraction of large over small companies is a “crowded” trade following superb 2021 performance.

S&P 500 largest companies

Rank Company

Market S&P 500 Cumulative 2021 Total

Price

YTD Total

Cap (SB) Weight Weight Return Return
1 Technology $174.78 $2,852 mulp 7.1% - 34% 2%
2 VITeros oft Technology $310.98 $2,331 6.1% 13% 52% 8%
3 Alphabet A&C (both classes) Comm Services $2,706.07 $1,676 4.1% 17% 65% 7%
4  Amazon.com Discretionary $2,991.47 $1,517 3.4% 21% 2% -10%
5 Meta Platforms A Comm Services $313.26 $741 1.9% =y 23% 23% -7%
6 Tesla Discretionary $936.72 $941 2.0% 25% 50% -11%
7 Berkshire Hathaway B Financials $313.02 $699 1.5% 26% 29% 5%
8  NVIDIA Technology $244.86 $612 1.6% 28% 125% 17%
9  Johnson &Johnson Health Care $172.29 $454 1.2% 29% 11% 1%
10 UnitedHealth Group Health Care $472.57 $445 1.2% ====ip 30% 45% -6%
11  JPMorgan Chase Financials $148.60 $439 1.1% 31% 28% 6%
12  Procter & Gamble Staples $160.45 $385 1.0% 32% 20% 1%
13 Home Depot Discretionary $366.98 $383 1.0% 33% 59% -12%
14 Visa A Technology $226.17 $375 1.0% 34% 0% 4%
15 Mastercard A Technology $386.38 $377 0.9% 35% 1% 8%
16  Bank of America Financials $46.14 $378 0.9% 36% 49% 4%
17  Exxon Mobil Energy $75.96 $322 0.8% 37% 57% 24%
18  Pfizer Health Care $52.69 $296 0.8% 38% 65% -10%
19  Walt Disney Comm Services $142.97 $260 0.7% 38% -8%
20 Chevron Energy $131.33 $253 0.7% =l 39% 12%
Top 20 Company Weighted Average (uses current weight) - 4%
S&P 500 451555 27% -5%

Source: FactSet Research Systems. Data: January 28, 2021.
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Intermediate and longer-term

considerations
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Deficit outlook: When will the bill come due?
An update to the budget and economic outlook

This visual update represents the Congressional Budget Office’s (CBO) projections factoring in the
COVID-19 stimulus and hit to Treasury’s revenues due to the recession. The CBO expects a reduced
budget deficit going into the 2030s, at which point entitlements take over and cause the deficit to rise
again.

Federal debt held by the public and projected as a percentage of GDP
(2020-2051)
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Source: Congressional Budget Office. Data: March 2021.
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Long-term economic consideration #2:
U.S. demographics —~

Outside of the post-World War Il baby boom, U.S. population growth has been in a structural decline
since the turn of the 20th century.

U.S. annual population growth*
(1900-2020)

3%

2% N

1%

0% I T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T
N Qo) \2) 9 O © $e) Q A > N > \p) 9, O © &) Q
Q Q N $e) X 3 3] © A A > ) ) Q N
SEIRCSEI \'\Q’% \'\& SRR SR SR SR SR SRR IR R O \'LQ(L

AR\ OO NS A\ G\ GO\ OO NS A\ OEEN

Source: Bloomberg and the U.S. Census Bureau, 2021.
*Graphic excludes surge in births in 1950 to provide a more detailed picture of demographic trends outside that data point.
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The bottom line ~~

We have migrated to a more balanced outlook from a "glass half-full”
perspective during a transitional period for markets
The stock-versus-bond opportunity is skewed much more favorably toward stocks over

time, but we expect a more reactive period where central bank communication will be
key.

Policy, growth and earnings are our immediate focal areas

Capital markets expect some tightening to occur, but policy overreach risks could upset
a key asset price driver. The potential for sticky inflation outside of central bank control
could embolden more tightening than markets can withstand.

2022 will be a news-heavy year, requiring clients to focus on longer-
term objectives

Global monetary policy meetings, a key year in Chinese leadership, U.S. midterm
elections and the usual list of economic and company earnings releases within a 24/7
news cycle offer many opportunities for noise. We encourage clients to focus on their
unique circumstances and how we can help increase the odds of success.
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Important disclosures, definitions of terms and

Index descriptions

If you have questions regarding this information or wish to
receive definitions of any additional terms or indexes used in
this report, please contact your Portfolio Manager.
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Important disclosures (page 1 of 4) ~

The information provided here is not intended to replace your account statement. Your account statement is the official
record of your account.

@ Equal Housing Lender. Credit products are offered by U.S. Bank National Association and subject to normal credit approval.
LenbeER  Deposit products offered by U.S. Bank National Association. Member FDIC.

For use in one-on-one meetings/presentations.

This information represents the opinion of U.S. Bank. The views are subject to change at any time based on market or other
conditions and are current as of the date indicated on the materials. This is not intended to be a forecast of future events or
guarantee of future results. The factual information provided has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable but is not
guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness.

U.S. Bank and its representatives do not provide tax or legal advice. Your tax and financial situation is unique. You should consult
your tax and/or legal advisor for advice and information concerning your particular situation.

Past performance is no guarantee of future results. All performance data, while obtained from sources deemed to be reliable,
are not guaranteed for accuracy. Indexes shown are unmanaged and are not available for direct investment, nor are they subject to
fees and expenses.

Performance reports included may show performance results gross of fees and expenses. If fees and expenses were included, the
performance would be lower. If you have any questions, please speak with your relationship manager for additional information.

Based on our strategic approach to creating diversified portfolios, guidelines are in place concerning the construction of portfolios
and how investments should be allocated to specific asset classes based on client goals, objectives and tolerance for risk. Not all
recommended asset classes will be suitable for every portfolio. Diversification and asset allocation do not guarantee returns or
protect against losses.
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Important disclosures (page 2 of 4) ~

Equity securities are subject to stock market fluctuations that occur in response to economic and business developments. Stocks
of small-capitalization companies involve substantial risk. These stocks historically have experienced greater price volatility than
stocks of larger companies and may be expected to do so in the future. Stocks of mid-capitalization companies can be expected
to be slightly less volatile than those of small-capitalization companies, but still involve substantial risk and may be subject to more
abrupt or erratic movements than large-capitalization companies. The value of large-capitalization stocks will rise and fall in
response to the activities of the company that issued them, general market conditions and/or economic conditions. Growth
investments focus on stocks of companies whose earnings/profitability are accelerating in the short term or have grown consistently
over the long term. Such investments may provide minimal dividends, which could otherwise cushion stock prices in a market
decline. Stock value may rise and fall significantly based, in part, on investors' perceptions of the company, rather than on
fundamental analysis of the stocks. Investors should carefully consider the additional risks involved in growth investments. Value
investments focus on stocks of income-producing companies whose price is low relative to one or more valuation factors, such as
earnings or book value. Such investments are subject to risks that their intrinsic values may never be realized by the market, or such
stocks may turn out not to have been undervalued. Investors should carefully consider the additional risks involved in value
investments.

International investing involves special risks, including foreign taxation, currency risks, risks associated with possible differences in
financial standards and other risks associated with future political and economic developments. Investing in emerging markets may
involve greater risks than investing in more developed countries. In addition, concentration of investments in a single region may
result in greater volatility.

Investments in real estate securities can be subject to fluctuations in the value of the underlying properties, the effect of economic
conditions on real estate values, changes in interest rates and risks related to renting properties (such as rental defaults). There are
special risks associated with an investment in commodities, including market price fluctuations, regulatory changes, interest rate
changes, credit risk, economic changes and the impact of adverse political or financial factors.

Investments in fixed income securities are subject to various risks, including changes in interest rates, credit quality, market
valuations, liquidity, prepayments, early redemption, corporate events, tax ramifications and other factors. Investment in fixed
income securities typically decrease in value when interest rates rise. This risk is usually greater for longer-term securities.
Investments in lower-rated and non-rated securities present a greater risk of loss to principal and interest than higher-rated
securities. Investments in high yield bonds offer the potential for high current income and attractive total return, but involve certain
risks. Changes in economic conditions or other circumstances may adversely affect a bond issuer's ability to make principal and
interest payments.
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Important disclosures (page 3 of 4) =~

The municipal bond market is volatile and can be significantly affected by adverse tax, legislative or political changes and the
financial condition of the issues of municipal securities. Interest rate increases can cause the price of a bond to decrease. Income on
municipal bonds is free from federal taxes, but may be subject to the federal alternative minimum tax (AMT), state and local taxes.
Treasury Inflation-Protected Securities (TIPS) offer a lower return compared to other similar investments and the principal value
may increase or decrease with the rate of inflation. Gains in principal are taxable in that year, even though not paid out until
maturity.

Non-financial specialty assets, such as real estate, farm, ranch and timber properties, oil, gas and mineral interests or closely-held
business interests are complex and involve unique risks specific to each asset type, including the total loss of value. Special risk
considerations may include natural events or disasters, complex tax considerations and lack of liquidity. Specialty assets may not be
suitable for all investors.

Alternative investments very often use speculative investment and trading strategies. There is no guarantee that the investment
program will be successful. Alternative investments are designed only for investors who are able to tolerate the full loss of an
investment. These products are not suitable for every investor even if the investor does meet the financial requirements. It is
important to consult with your investment professional to determine how these investments might fit your asset allocation, risk profile
and tax situation. Hedge funds are speculative and involve a high degree of risk. An investment in a hedge fund involves a
substantially more complicated set of risk factors than traditional investments in stocks or bonds, including the risks of using
derivatives, leverage and short sales, which can magnify potential losses or gains. Restrictions exist on the ability to redeem or
transfer interests in a fund. Exchange-traded funds (ETFs) are baskets of securities that are traded on an exchange like individual
stocks at negotiated prices and are not individually redeemable. ETFs are designed to generally track a market index and shares
may trade at a premium or a discount to the net asset value of the underlying securities. Private equity investments provide
investors and funds the potential to invest directly into private companies or participate in buyouts of public companies that result in
a delisting of the public equity. Investors considering an investment in private equity must be fully aware that these investments are
illiquid by nature, typically represent a long-term binding commitment and are not readily marketable. The valuation procedures for
these holdings are often subjective in nature. Private debt investments may be either direct or indirect and are subject to significant
risks, including the possibility of default, limited liquidity and the infrequent availability of independent credit ratings for private
companies. Structured products are subject to market risk and/or principal loss if sold prior to maturity or if the issuer defaults on
the security. Investors should request and review copies of Structured Products Pricing Supplements and Prospectuses prior to
approving or directing an investment in these securities.
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Important disclosures (page 4 of 4) =~

Mutual fund investing involves risk and principal loss is possible. Investing in certain funds involves special risks, such as those
related to investments in small- and mid-capitalization stocks, foreign, debt and high-yield securities and funds that focus their
investments in a particular industry. Please refer to the fund prospectus for additional details pertaining to these risks. An investment
in money market funds is not insured or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or any other government
agency. Although these funds seek to preserve the value of an investment at $1.00 per share, it is possible to lose money by
investing in these funds.

Holdings of First American Funds: U.S. Bancorp Asset Management, Inc. is a registered investment advisor and subsidiary of
U.S. Bank National Association. U.S. Bank National Association is a separate entity and wholly owned subsidiary of U.S. Bancorp.
U.S. Bank is not responsible for and does not guarantee the products, performance or services of U.S. Bancorp Asset Management.
U.S. Bancorp Asset Management, Inc. serves as an investment advisor to First American Funds. Holdings of Nuveen mutual
funds: Firstar Capital Corporation (Firstar Capital), an affiliate of U.S. Bancorp, holds a less-than-10 percent ownership interest in
Windy City Investments Holdings, LLC which was formerly the parent of Windy City Investment Inc. and the indirect parent of
Nuveen Fund Advisors, LLC which is the investment advisor to the Nuveen Mutual Funds. On October 1, 2014, Windy City
Investments, Inc. was sold to Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America. As a result of the sale, U.S. Bancorp no
longer has an indirect ownership interest in Nuveen Fund Advisors, LLC. Depending on the outcome of certain factors, Firstar
Capital might in the future receive an earn-out payment in respect of its interest in Windy City Investment Holdings, LLC, under the
terms of the sale. Non-proprietary mutual funds: U.S. Bank may enter into agreements with other non-proprietary mutual funds or
their service providers whereby U.S. Bank provides shareholder services and/or sub-transfer agency, custodial and other
administrative support services and receives compensation for these services. Compensation received by U.S. Bank directly or
indirectly from mutual funds does not increase fund fees and expenses beyond what is disclosed in the fund prospectuses. For more
information, review the fund prospectus.
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Definitions of report and statement terms (page 1
of 5) ~

Accredited Investor: Private placement securities generally require that investors be accredited due to the additional risks and
speculative nature of the securities. For natural persons, the criteria is met by a net worth of more than $1 million (excluding primary
residence) or an income of more than $200,000 individually ($300,000 jointly) for the two most recent years and a reasonable
expectation for the same in the current year. For other entities, such as corporations, partnerships, trusts and employee benefit
plans, the criteria is met with at least $5 million in assets. See full definition in Rule 501 of Regulation D under the Securities Act of
1933.

Alpha: A measure of risk-adjusted performance. A statistic measuring that portion of a stock, fund or composite's total return
attributable to specific or non-market risk. Alpha measures non-market return and indicates how much value has been added or lost.
A positive Alpha indicates the fund or composite has performed better than its Beta would predict (i.e., the manager has added value
above the benchmark). A negative Alpha indicates a fund or composite has underperformed given the composite's Beta.

Alternative Investments: As used by U.S. Bank, an investment considered to be outside of the traditional asset classes of long-only
stocks, bonds and cash. Examples of alternative investments include hedge funds, private equity, options and financial derivatives.

Annualized Excess Return: Shows the difference between the annualized linked returns of a portfolio and the model benchmark.
Performance reports provided annualize only periods greater than one year.

Annualized or Annual Rate of Return: Represents the average annual change in the value of an investment over the periods
indicated.

Batting Average: Shows how consistently the portfolio return met or beat the market.

Beta: A measure of your portfolio's risk relative to a benchmark. A portfolio with a beta of 1.5, for example, would be expected to
return roughly 1.5 times the benchmark's return. A high Beta indicates a riskier portfolio.

Bond Credit Rating: A grade given to bonds by a private independent rating service that indicates their credit quality. Ratings are
the opinion of Standard & Poor's or other agencies as noted and not the opinion of U.S. Bank.

Consumer Price Index (CPI): A measure of the average change in prices over time in a market basket of goods and services and is
one of the most frequently used statistics for identifying periods of inflation and deflation.

Convexity to Stated Maturity: A measure of the curvature in the relationship between bond prices and bond yields that
demonstrates how the duration of a bond changes as the interest rate changes. Convexity is used as a risk-management tool and
helps to measure and manage the amount of market risk to which a portfolio of bonds is exposed. This version of convexity
measures the rate change in duration of a bond as the yield to (stated) maturity changes.
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Definitions of report and statement terms (page 2
of 5) ~

Cost basis/book value: The original value of an asset at the time it was acquired. This is normally the purchase price or appraised
value at the time of acquisition. This data is for information purposes only.

Cumulative Excess Return: Shows the difference between the annualized linked returns of a portfolio and the model benchmark.
Performance reports provided use unannualized returns in periods up to one year, but annualized returns for periods exceeding one
year.

Downside Capture: The downside capture ratio reflects how a portfolio compares to a benchmark during periods when the
benchmark is down. A downside capture ratio of 0.80 (or 80 percent) means the portfolio has historically declined only
80 percent as much as the benchmark during down markets.

Downside Deviation: The deviation of returns that fall below a minimum acceptable return (MAR). Although the numerator includes
only returns below the MAR, the denominator includes all returns in the performance period. This risk statistic is similar to the
downside standard deviation except the sum is restricted to returns less than the MAR instead of the mean.

Downside Standard Deviation: The deviation of returns that fall below the mean return. Although the numerator includes only
returns below the mean, the denominator includes all returns in the performance period. This risk statistic is similar to the downside
deviation except the sum is restricted to returns less than the mean instead of the minimum acceptable return (MAR).

Effective Maturity: The date of a bond’s most likely redemption, given current market conditions, taking into consideration the
optional and mandatory calls, the optional, mandatory and recurring puts, and the stated maturity.

Estimated annual income: The amount of income a particular asset is anticipated to earn over the period indicted. The shares
multiplied by the annual income rate.

Gain/loss calculation: If an asset was sold, the difference between the proceeds received from the sale compared to the cost of
acquiring the asset. If the value of the proceeds is the higher of the two numbers, then a gain was realized. If the value of the
proceeds is the lower of the two numbers, a loss was incurred. This data is for information purposes only.

Information Ratio: The information ratio compares the average excess return of the portfolio over its associated benchmark divided
by the tracking error.

M-Squared: The hypothetical return of the portfolio after its risk has been adjusted to match a benchmark.

U.S. Bank Confidential | U.S. 8352



Definitions of report and statement terms (page 3
of 5) ~

Market Value: Publicly traded assets are valued using market quotations or valuation methods from financial industry services believed by
us to be reliable. Assets, that are not publicly traded, may be reflected at values from other external sources or special valuations prepared
by us. Assets for which a current value is not available may be reflected as not valued, at par value, or at a nominal value. Values shown do
not necessarily reflect prices at which assets could have been bought or sold. Values are updated based on internal policy and may be
updated less frequently than statement generation.

Market Value Over Time: Many factors can impact the portfolio value over time, such as contributions to the account, distributions from the
account, the investment of dividends and interest, the deduction of fees and expenses, and market performance.

Modified Duration to Effective Maturity: A formula that expresses the measurable change in the value of a security in response to a
change in interest rates. This version of Modified Duration takes into consideration a “horizon date/price” that is, given current conditions,
the most likely redemption date/price using the set of calls/puts, as well as stated maturity.

Modified Duration to Stated Maturity: A formula that expresses the measurable change in the value of a security in response to a change
in interest rates. This version of Modified Duration uses stated maturity as the “horizon date/price” and ignores any potential call/put/pre-
refunding, even if they are mandatory.

Price/Earnings Ratio (P/E): The P/E ratio of a company is calculated by dividing the price of the company’s stock by its trailing

12-month earnings per share. A high P/E usually indicates that the market is paying a premium for current earnings because it believes in
the firm’s ability to grow its earnings. A low P/E indicates the market has less confidence that the company’s earnings will increase. Within
a portfolio, P/E is the weighted average of the price/earnings ratios of the stocks in the portfolio.

Qualified Purchaser: Some private placement securities require that investors be Qualified Purchasers in addition to being Accredited
Investors. For natural persons, the criteria is generally met when the client (individually or jointly) owns at least $5 million in investments.
For other entities, such as corporations, partnerships, trusts and employee benefit plans, the criteria is met with at least $25 million in
investments though there are other eligibility tests that may apply. See full definition in Section 2(a)(51) of the Investment Company Act of
1940.

R-Squared: Measures the portion of the risk in your portfolio that can be attributed to the risk in the benchmark.

Realized and Unrealized Gains/Losses: Are calculated for individual tax lots based on the records we have available. Some data may be
incomplete or differ from what you are required to report on your tax return. Some data used in these calculations may have been obtained
from outside sources and cannot be verified by U.S. Bank. The data is intended for informational purposes only and should not be used for
tax reporting purposes. Please consult with your tax or legal advisor for questions concerning your personal tax or financial situation.
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Definitions of report and statement terms (page 4
of 5) ~

Residual Risk: The amount of risk specific to the assets in a portfolio distinct from the market, represented by a benchmark.

Return: An indication of the past performance of your portfolio.

Sharpe Ratio: Measures of risk-adjusted return that calculates the return per unit of risk, where risk is the Standard Deviation of your
portfolio. A high Sharpe ratio indicates that the portfolio is benefiting from taking risk.

Sortino Ratio: Intended to differentiate between good and bad volatility. Similar to the Sharpe ratio, except it uses downside deviation for
the denominator instead of standard deviation, the use of which doesn't discriminate between up and down volatility.

Spread: The difference between the yields of two bonds with differing credit ratings (most often, a corporate bond with a certain amount
of risk is compared to a standard traditionally lower risk Treasury bond). The bond spread will show the additional yield that could be
earned from a bond which has a higher risk.

Standard Deviation: A measure of the volatility and risk of your portfolio. A low standard deviation indicates a portfolio with less volatile
returns and therefore less inherent risk.

Time-weighted Return: The method used to calculate performance. Time-weighted return calculates period by period returns that
negates the effect of external cash flows. Returns for periods of greater than one year are reported as an annualized (annual) rate of
return. Returns of less than one year are reported on a cumulative return basis. Cumulative return is the aggregate amount an investment
has gained or lost over time, independent of the period involved.

Tracking Error: A divergence between the price behavior of a position or a portfolio and the price behavior of a benchmark. This
is often in the context of a hedge or mutual fund that did not work as effectively as intended, creating an unexpected profit or loss instead.

Traditional Investments: As used by U.S. Bank, an investment made in equity, fixed income or cash securities, mutual funds or
exchange-traded funds (ETFs) where the investor buys at a price with the goal that the investment will go up in value.

Top 10 Holdings: The 10 assets with the highest market values in the account.

Total Portfolio Gross of Fees: Represents all assets included in the calculation of the portfolio, before the deduction of trust and asset
management fees, and is inclusive of all applicable third-party security fees and expenses. Details of those fees and expenses are
provided in the security’s prospectus or offering documents.
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Definitions of report and statement terms (page 5
of 5) ~

Total Return: The rate of return that includes the realized and unrealized gains and losses plus income for the measurement period.

Treynor Ratio: Measures the performance of a sector relative to risk by dividing the return of the sector in excess of the risk-free return
by the sector's Beta. The higher the Treynor ratio, the better the return relative to risk.

Turnover Percent: Indicates how frequently asset are bought and sold within a portfolio.

Turnover Ratio: The percentage of a mutual fund’s or other investment vehicle's holdings that have been "turned over" or replaced with
other holdings in a given year.

Unrealized gain (loss) — The difference between the current market value (at the end of the statement period) and the cost to acquire
the asset. If the current market value is higher than the cost, a gain is reflected. If the current market value is lower than the cost paid, a
loss is reflected. This data is for information purposes only.

Upside Capture: The upside capture ratio reflects how a portfolio compares to the selected model benchmark during periods when the
benchmark is up. An upside capture ratio of 1.15 (or 115 percent) means the portfolio has historically beat the benchmark by 15 percent
during up markets.

Yield: The annual rate of return on an investment, expressed as a percentage. For bonds, it is the coupon rate divided by the market
price. For stocks, it is the annual dividend divided by the market price.
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Frequently used indexes (page 1 of 5) ~~

Bloomberg Barclays 1-3 year U.S. Treasury Index: Measures the performance of the U.S. government bond market and includes
public obligations of the U.S. Treasury with a maturity between one year and up to (but not including) three years.

Bloomberg Barclays 1-5 year U.S. Treasury Index: Includes all publicly issued, U.S. Treasury securities that have a remaining
maturity of greater than or equal to one year and less than five years, are rated investment grade and have $250 million or more of
outstanding face value.

The Bloomberg Barclays 1-5 year Municipal Index: Measures the performance of municipal bonds with time to maturity of more
than one year and less than five years.

Bloomberg Barclays 7-year Municipal Index: Includes municipal bonds with a minimum credit rating of Baa that have been issued
as part of a transaction of at least $50 million, have a maturity value of at least $5 million and a maturity range of four to six years.

Bloomberg Barclays Global Aggregate Index ex-U.S. Index: Measure of global investment grade debt from 24 local currency
markets. This multi-currency benchmark includes Treasury, government-related, corporate and securitized fixed-rate bonds from
both developed and emerging markets issuers.

Bloomberg Barclays Global Treasury ex-U.S. Index: Includes government bonds issued by investment-grade counties outside
the United States, in local currencies, that have a remaining maturity of one year or more and are rated investment grade.

Bloomberg Barclays High Yield Municipal Bond Index: An unmanaged index made up of bonds that are non-investment grade,
unrated or below Ba1 bonds.

Bloomberg Barclays Intermediate Aggregate Index: Consists of one- to 10-year governments, one- to 10-year corporate bonds,
all mortgages and all asset-backed securities within the Aggregate Index.

Bloomberg Barclays Mortgage-Backed Securities Index: Covers agency mortgage-backed pass-through securities (both fixed-
rate and hybrid adjustable-rate mortgages) issued by Ginnie Mae (GNMA), Fannie Mae (FNMA), and Freddie Mac (FHLMC).

Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Aggregate Bond Index: Measures the investment grade, U.S. dollar-denominated, fixed-rate taxable
bond market, including Treasuries, government-related and corporate securities, mortgage-backed securities, asset-backed
securities and commercial mortgage-backed securities.

Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Corporate Bond Index: Measures the investment grade, fixed-rate, taxable corporate bond market and
includes U.S. dollar-denominated securities publicly issued by U.S. and non-U.S. industrial, utility and financial issuers.
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Frequently used indexes (page 2 of 5) ~~

Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Corporate High Yield Bond Index: Measures the U.S. dollar denominated, high yield, fixed-rate
corporate bond market.

Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Municipal Bond Index: Measures the investment grade, U.S. dollar-denominated, fixed tax-exempt bond
market. The index includes state and local general obligation, revenue, insured and pre-refunded bonds.

Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Treasury Index: Measures U.S. dollar-denominated, fixed-rate, nominal debt issued by the U.S. Treasury.

Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Treasury Inflation-Protected Securities (TIPS) Index: An unmanaged index includes all publicly issued,
U.S. TIPS that have at least one year remaining to maturity, are rated investment grade, and have $250 million or more of outstanding
face value.

Cambridge U.S. Private Equity Index: This index is based on returns data compiled for U.S. private equity funds (including buyout,
growth equity and mezzanine funds) that represent the majority of institutional capital raised by private equity partnerships formed
since 1986. Returns may be delayed by up to six months. Quarterly performance is prorated based on the cube root for the months of
the quarter.

Citigroup 3-Month Treasury Bills: An unmanaged index and represents monthly return equivalents of yield averages of the last
three-month Treasury Bill issues.

Citigroup 6-Month Treasury Bills: An unmanaged index and represents monthly return equivalents of yield averages of the last six-
month Treasury Bill issues.

Credit Suisse Leverage Loan Index: Represents tradable, senior-secured, U.S. dollar-denominated non-investment grade loans.

Dow Jones Industrial Average (DJIA): The price-weighted average of 30 significant U.S. stocks traded on the New York Stock
Exchange and NASDAQ. The DJIA is the oldest and single most watched index in the world.

Dow Jones Select REIT Index: Measures the performance of publicly traded REITs and REIT-like securities in the U.S. and is a
proxy for direct real estate investment, in part by excluding companies whose performance may be driven by factors other than the
value of real estate.

HFRI Indices: The Hedge Fund Research, Inc. (HFRI) indexes are a series of benchmarks designed to reflect hedge fund industry
performance by constructing composites of constituent funds, as reported by the hedge fund managers listed within the HFR
Database.
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HFRI Equity Hedge Total Index: Uses the HFR (Hedge Fund Research) database and consists only of equity hedge funds with a
minimum of $50 million assets under management or a 12-month track record and that reported assets in U.S. dollars.

HFRI Relative Value Fixed Income Corporate Index: Uses the HFR (Hedge Fund Research) database and consists of only
relative value fixed income corporate funds with a minimum of $50 million assets under management or a 12-month track record and
that reported assets in U.S. dollars.

ICE BofAML 1-3 Year Corporate Index: Tracks U.S. dollar-denominated investment grade public debt issued in the U.S. bond
market with maturities of one to three years.

ICE BofAML 1-5 Year Corporate and Government Index: Tracks the performance of short-term U.S. investment grade
government and corporate securities with maturities between one and five years.

ICE BofAML U.S. 7-10 Year Index: Tracks the performance of U.S. dollar denominated investment grade rated corporate debt
publicly issued in the U.S. domestic market and includes all securities with a remaining term to maturity of greater than or equal to
seven years and less than 10 years.

ICE BofAML Global Broad Market Index: Tracks the performance of investment grade public debt issued in the major domestic
and Eurobond markets, including global bonds.

ICE BofAML U.S. High Yield Master Il Index: Commonly used benchmark index for high yield corporate bonds and measures the
broad high yield market.

J.P. Morgan Emerging Markets Bond Index Global (EMBI Global): Tracks total returns for traded external debt instruments in
the emerging markets.

London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) 3-months: The interest rate offered by a specific group of London banks for U.S. dollar
deposits with a three-month maturity.

London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) 9-months: The interest rate offered by a specific group of London banks for U.S. dollar
deposits with a nine-month maturity.

MSCI All Country World Index (ACWI): Designed to measure the equity market performance of developed and emerging markets.
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Russell 2000 Value Index: Measures companies in the Russell 2000 Index having lower price-to-book ratios and lower forecasted
growth values. The Russell 2000 Index includes the 2,000 firms from the Russell 3000 Index with the smallest market capitalizations.

Russell 3000 Index: Measures the performance of the 3,000 largest U.S. securities based on total market capitalization.
Russell Midcap Index: Measures the 800 smallest companies in the Russell 3000 Index.

Russell Midcap Growth Index: Measures companies in the Russell Midcap Index having higher price-to-book ratios and higher
forecasted growth values.

Russell Midcap Value Index: Measures companies in the Russell Midcap Index having lower price-to-book ratios and lower
forecasted growth values.

MSCI All County World ex-U.S. Index (ACWI, excluding United States): Tracks the performance of stocks representing developed
and emerging markets around the world that collectively comprise most foreign stock markets. U.S. stocks are excluded from the
index.

MSCI EAFE Index: Includes approximately 1,000 companies representing the stock markets of 21 countries in Europe, Australasia
and the Far East.

MSCI Emerging Markets (EM) Index: Designed to measure equity market performance in global emerging markets.
MSCI World Index: Tracks equity market performance of developed markets through individual country indices.

NAREIT Index: Includes REITs (Real Estate Investment Trusts) listed on the New York Stock Exchange, NASDAQ and American
Stock Exchange.

NASDAQ Composite Index: A market capitalization-weighted average of roughly 5,000 stocks that are electronically traded in the
NASDAQ market.

NCREIF Property Index (NPI): Measures the investment performance of a very large pool of individual commercial real estate
properties acquired in the private market for investment purposes only.

Russell 1000 Index: Measures the performance of the 1,000 largest companies in the Russell 3000 Index and is representative of the
U.S. large capitalization securities market.
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Russell 1000 Growth Index: Measures companies in the Russell 1000 Index with higher price-to-book ratios and higher forecasted
growth values. It includes the largest 1,000 firms in the Russell 3000 Index.

Russell 1000 Value Index: Measures companies in the Russell 1000 Index with lower price-to-book ratios and lower forecasted
growth values. It includes the largest 1,000 firms in the Russell 3000 Index.

Russell 2000 Index: Measures the performance of the 2,000 smallest companies in the Russell 3000 Index and is representative of
the U.S. small capitalization securities market.

Russell 2000 Growth Index: Measures companies in the Russell 2000 Index having higher price-to-book ratios and higher
forecasted growth values. and is representative of U.S. securities exhibiting growth characteristics. The Russell 2000 Index includes
the 2,000 firms from the Russell 3000 Index with the smallest market capitalizations.

S&P 500 Index: Consists of 500 widely traded stocks that are considered to represent the performance of the U.S. stock market.

S&P Global ex-U.S. Property Index: Measures the investable universe of publicly traded property companies domiciled in
developed and emerging markets excluding the United States. The companies included are engaged in real estate related activities
such as property ownership, management, development, rental and investment.

S&P GSCI: A composite index of commodity sector returns, representing an unleveraged, long-only investment in commodity
futures that is broadly diversified across the spectrum of commodities.

S&P/Case-Shiller Home Price Indexes: A group of indexes that track changes in home prices throughout the United States. Case-
Shiller produces indexes representing certain metropolitan statistical areas (MSA) as well as a national index.

Swiss Re Global Cat Bond Total Return Index: Tracks the aggregate performance of all U.S. dollar-denominated euros and
Japanese yen-denominated catastrophe bonds, capturing all ratings, perils and triggers.

U.S. Dollar Index: Indicates the general international value of the U.S. dollar by averaging the exchange rates between the U.S.
dollar and six major world currencies.

Wilshire 5000 Index: Composed of more than 6,700 publicly-traded U.S. companies and is designed to track the overall
performance of the American stock markets.
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This information represents the opinion of U.S. Bank Wealth Management. The views are subject to change at any time based on market or other
conditions and are current as of the date indicated on the materials. This is not intended to be a forecast of future events or guarantee of future
results. It is not intended to provide specific advice or to be construed as an offering of securities or recommendation to invest. Not for use as a
primary basis of investment decisions. Not to be construed to meet the needs of any particular investor. Not a representation or solicitation or an
offer to sell/buy any security. Investors should consult with their investment professional for advice concerning their particular situation. The factual
information provided has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable, but is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness. U.S. Bank is
not affiliated or associated with any organizations mentioned. Based on our strategic approach to creating diversified portfolios, guidelines are in
place concerning the construction of portfolios and how investments should be allocated to specific asset classes based on client goals, objectives
and tolerance for risk. Not all recommended asset classes will be suitable for every portfolio. Diversification and asset allocation do not guarantee
returns or protect against losses.

Past performance is no guarantee of future results. All performance data, while obtained from sources deemed to be reliable, are not
guaranteed for accuracy. Indexes shown are unmanaged and are not available for direct investment, nor are they subject to fees and expenses.
The S&P 500 Index consists of 500 widely traded stocks that are considered to represent the performance of the U.S. stock market in general. The
MSCI EAFE Index includes approximately 1,000 companies representing the stock markets of 21 countries in Europe, Australasia and the Far East
(EAFE). The MSCI Emerging Markets Index is designed to measure equity market performance in global emerging markets. The MSCI World
Index tracks equity market performance of developed markets through individual country indices. The Consumer Price Index (CPI) is a measure
that examines the weighted average of prices of a basket of consumer goods and services, such as transportation, food and medical care. It is
calculated by taking price changes for each item in the predetermined basket of goods and averaging them. The Personal Consumption
Expenditures (PCE) Price Index measures the prices paid by consumers for goods and services without the volatility caused by movements in
food and energy prices to reveal underlying inflation trends. The Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Corporate High Yield Bond Index measures the U.S.
dollar denominated, high yield, fixed-rate corporate bond market. The Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Aggregate Bond Index is a broad-based
benchmark that measures the investment grade, U.S. dollar denominated, fixed-rate taxable bond market, including Treasuries, government-related
and corporate securities, mortgage-backed securities, asset-backed securities and commercial mortgage-backed securities. The Bloomberg
Commodity Index tracks prices of futures contracts on physical commodities in the commodity markets and is designed to minimize concentration
in any one commodity or sector. The Bloomberg Barclays Global Aggregate Index measures global investment grade debt from 24 local
currency markets. This multi-currency benchmark includes Treasury, government-related, corporate and securitized fixed-rate bonds from both
developed and emerging markets issuers. The Wilshire U.S. REIT Index is a broad measure of the U.S. real estate securities markets and a
subset of the Wilshire Real Estate Securities Index and includes only Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs). West Texas Intermediate (WTI)
crude oil is the underlying commodity of the New York Mercantile Exchange's oil futures contracts. The U.S. Dollar Index (DY) is a measure of the
value of the U.S. dollar relative to the value of a basket of currencies of the majority of the U.S.'s most significant trading partners.
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The Trade-Weighted Dollar Index was created by the Federal Reserve to measure the value of the U.S. dollar based on its competitiveness versus
trading partners. The Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Commercial Mortgage-Backed Securities (CMBS) Investment Grade Index measures the
market of conduit and fusion CMBS deals, with a minimum current deal size of $300 million. The S&P Global Leveraged Loan Index is designed to
measure the performance of the global senior loan market. This fixed-weight index is 75% weighted in the S&P/LSTA Leveraged Loan Index and
25% weighted in the S&P European Leveraged Loan Index. The Chicago Board Options Exchange (CBOE) Crude Oil ETF Volatility Index (Oil
VIX) measures the market's expectation of 30-day volatility of crude oil prices. The ICE BofAML MOVE Index measures the implied yield volatility of
a basket of one-month over-the-counter options on 2-year, 5-year, 10-year and 30-year Treasuries. The Chicago Board Options Exchange
(CBOE) Volatility Index (VIX) measures the market's expectation of 30-day volatility and is a widely used measure of market risk and is often
referred to as the "investor fear gauge." The Russell 2000 Index measures the performance of the 2,000 smallest companies in the Russell 3000
Index and is representative of the U.S. small capitalization securities market. The Russell Midcap Index measures the performance of the mid-cap
segment of the U.S. equity universe and is a subset of the Russell 1000 Index. It includes approximately 800 of the smallest securities based on a
combination of their market cap and current index membership. The Russell 2000 Value Index measures the performance of those Russell 2000
Index securities with lower price-to-book ratios and lower forecasted growth values and is representative of U.S. securities exhibiting value
characteristics. The NASDAQ Composite Index is a market-capitalization weighted average of roughly 5,000 stocks that are electronically traded in
the NASDAQ market. The Oxford/Blavatnik Lockdown Stringency Index records the strictness of “lockdown style” policies that primarily restrict
people’s behavior. It is calculated using all ordinal containment and closure policy indicators in the Oxford Covid-19 Government Response Tracker ,
plus an indicator recording public information campaigns.

Equity securities are subject to stock market fluctuations that occur in response to economic and business developments. International investing
involves special risks, including foreign taxation, currency risks, risks associated with possible differences in financial standards and other risks
associated with future political and economic developments. Investing in emerging markets may involve greater risks than investing in more
developed countries. In addition, concentration of investments in a single region may result in greater volatility. Investments in fixed income
securities are subject to various risks, including changes in interest rates, credit quality, market valuations, liquidity, prepayments, early redemption,
corporate events, tax ramifications and other factors. Investment in fixed income securities typically decrease in value when interest rates rise. This
risk is usually greater for longer-term securities. Investments in lower-rated and non-rated securities present a greater risk of loss to principal and
interest than higher-rated securities. Investments in high yield bonds offer the potential for high current income and attractive total return but involve
certain risks. Changes in economic conditions or other circumstances may adversely affect a bond issuer's ability to make principal and interest
payments. There are special risks associated with investments in real assets such as commodities and real estate securities. For commodities, risks
may include market price fluctuations, regulatory changes, interest rate changes, credit risk, economic changes and the impact of adverse political or
financial factors. Investments in real estate securities can be subject to fluctuations in the value of the underlying properties, the effect of economic
conditions on real estate values, changes in interest rates and risks related to renting properties (such as rental defaults).
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Certified Public Acountants

Thomas, Kunc & Black, LLP

Independent Accountant's Compilation Report

To the Board of Direciors
League Association of Risk Management
Lincoln, Nebraska

Management is responsible for the accompanying financial statements of League Association of Risk
Management, which comprise the balance sheets - statutory basis as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and
the related statutory statements of revenues and expenses, changes in surplus, and cash flows for the
periods then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements in the accompanying prescribed form
in accordance with the Insurance Department of the State of Nebraska. We have performed a compilation
engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services
promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA. We did not audit or review

the financial statements nor were we required to perform any procedures to verify the accuracy or .

completeness of the information provided by management. We do not express an opinion, a conclusion,
nor provide any form of assurance on the financial statements included in the accompanying prescribed
form.

The financial statements included in the accompanying prescribed form are presented in accordance with
the requirements of the Insurance Department of the State of Nebraska and are not intended to be a
presentation in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

September 30, 2021 Financial Statements
The accompanying September 30, 2021 financial statements of League Association of Risk Management

were audited by us, and we expressed an unqualified opinion on the statutory basis of accounting in our
report dated November 30, 2021, but we have not performed any auditing procedures since that date.

Lincoln, Nebraska Thrmaa, Kmﬁ o d 6/(,0(»,&_) LR

February 15, 2022
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LEAGUE ASSOCIATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT

Balance Sheets - Statutory Basis

December 31, 2021 and 2020 and September 30, 2021

Assets
December 31, December 31, September 30,
2021 2020 2021
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited)

Cash:

Cash on deposit $ 4,824,839 2,015,341 1,942,698
Short-term investments - 1,749,766 -
Total cash 4,824,839 3,765,107 1,942,698
Long-term investments 16,230,413 14,838,156 13,242,300
Accounts receivable 23,405 117 15,411
Premiums receivable 121,836 783,115 9,713,737
Interest receivable 20,444 26,684 15,485
Reinsurance recoverable on paid losses 1,301,776 2,034,310 780,964
Total assets 3 22,522,713 21,447,489 25,710,595
Liabilities and Surplus

Loss reserves $ 4,191,485 4,444 431 4,693,666
Loss adjustment expenses 2,821,515 1,743,102 2,552,549
Unearned premium 6,595,191 5,797,184 9,328,559
Taxes payable 124,556 114,286 97,488
Other liabilities 135,459 193,997 143,408
Funds held under reinsurance treaties 25,000 25,000 25,000
Total liabilities 13,893,206 12,318,000 16,840,670
Surplus 8,629,507 9,129,489 8,869,925
Total liabilities and surplus $ 22,522,713 21,447,489 25,710,595

See accompanying notes to financial statements and independent accountant’s compilation report.
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LEAGUE ASSOCIATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT

Statements of Income - Statutory Basis

For the periods ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

and the year ended September 30, 2021

Year
Three Months Ended Ended
December 31, December 31, September 30,
2021 2020 2021
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
Revenues: '
Premiums earned, direct $ 2,835,160 2,442 551 9,889,689
Premiums earned, transferred by excess (865,766) (657,480) (2,874,577)
Net premiums 1,969,394 1,785,071 7,015,112
Investment income 16,846 17,345 56,947
Miscellaneous income 1,195 263 106,370
Total revenues 1,987,435 1,802,679 7,178,429
Expenses:
Losses incurred, direct 891,365 711,351 3,635,453
Losses incurred, transferred by excess (327,570) 176,157 (477,631)
Net losses 563,795 887,508 3,157,822
Loss expenses incurred 450,857 110,220 1,775,726
Other underwriting expenses incurred 1,213,201 1,055,632 2,755,026
Total expenses 2,227,853 2,053,260 7,688,574
Net income/(loss) - statutory basis 3 (240,418) (250,581) (510,145)

See accompanying notes to financial statements and independent accountant's compilation report.
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LEAGUE ASSOCIATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT

Statements of Changes in Surplus - Statutory Basis

For the periods ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
and the year ended September 30, 2021

Surplus, beginning of period

Net income/(loss) - statutory basis
Unrealized capital gain

Change in non-admitted assets
Dividends

Surplus, end of period

~ Year

Three Months Ended Ended
December 31, December 31, September 30,

2021 2020 2021
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited)

$ 8,869,925 9,380,070 9,380,070
(240,418) (250,581) (510,145)
- - 397,674
- - (397,674)
$ 8,629,507 9,129,489 8,869,925

See accompanying notes to financial statements and independent accountant’s compilation report.
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LEAGUE ASSOCIATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT

Statements of Cash Flows - Statutory Basis

For the periods ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

and the year ended September 30, 2021

Premiums collected, net of excess insurance
Loss and loss adjustment expenses paid
Underwriting expenses paid

Cash from underwriting
Investment income
Other income/{expense)

Net cash from operations

Transfers in:
Other sources

Transfers out:
Other applications

Net change in cash and short-term investments
Cash and short-term investments, beginning of period

Cash and short-term investments, end of period

Year
Three Months Ended Ended
December 31, December 31, September 30,
2021 2020 2021
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
8,819,971 7,490,972 7,306,272
(1,768,679) (1,148,848) (2,772,640)
(1,194,082) (1,130,153) (2,897,034)
5,857,210 5,211,971 1,636,598
11,887 17,842 466,317
1,195 - 106,370
5,870,292 5,229,813 2,209,285
- 135 -
(2,988,151) (7,587,051) (6,388,797)
2,882,141 (2,357,103) (4,179,512)
1,942,698 6,122,210 6,122,210
4,824,839 3,765,107 1,942,698

See accompanying notes to financial statements and independent accountant’s compilation report.
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LEAGUE ASSOCIATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020 (Unaudited) and September 30, 2021 (Audited)

(1)  Summary of significant accounting policies:
(a) Nature of organization:

The League Association of Risk Management (the Pool) is a risk management pool created under
the provisions of the Intergovernmental Risk Management Act and the Interlocal Cooperation Act
of the State of Nebraska. The Pool was created for the purpose of Nebraska municipalities to act
jointly to provide risk management services and insurance coverage in the form of group self-
insurance or standard insurance, including any combination of group self-insurance and standard
insurance, to protect members against losses arising from general liability, property damage,
destruction or loss, errors and omissions liability, and workers’ compensation liability. Any county,
city, village, school district, public power district, rural fire district, or other political subdivision of the
State of Nebraska, the State of Nebraska, the University of Nebraska, and any corporation whose
primary function is to act as an instrumentality or agency of the State of Nebraska is eligible to
participate as a member of the pool.

The Pool is financed through the annual and supplemental contributions paid by the participating
entities, through income earned from the investment of the Pool’s funds, and through any other
monies, which may be lawfully received by the Pool and made part of the Pool's assets. The Pool
provides group self-insurance coverage for automobile physical damage, comprehensive property
- all risk, boiler and machinery, basic crime, general liability, automobile liability, law enforcement
liability, public officials liability, employment practices liability, non-monetary relief defense expense,
reimbursement of criminal defense expense, workers’ compensation, employers' liability, cyber
liability, and terrorism.

The Pool is operated by a Board of Directors consisting of elected and appointed officials or
employees of the Pool members. The Board has the power to establish the coverage document,
ensure that all claims covered by the document are paid, take all necessary precautions to
safeguard the assets of the Pool, and make and enter into any and all contracts and agreements
necessary to carry out any of the powers granted or duties imposed under the Pool formation
agreement, the Pool's bylaws, or any applicable law or regulation.

(b) Basis of presentation:
For purposes of this statement, the Pool uses the statutory basis of accounting as prescribed by
the Insurance Department of the State of Nebraska, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting
other than generally accepted accounting principles. Under the statutory basis of accounting,
certain fixed assets and prepaid expenses are not recognized on the balance sheet.

(c) Investmentincome:
Investment income consists primarily of interest and is recorded as earned.

(d) Contributions:
Contributions are earned over the terms of the related coverage document and reinsurance
contracts. All coverage documents coincide with the fiscal year of the Pool. Unearned contribution
reserves are established to cover the unexpired portion of contributions written. Such reserves are
computed by pro rata methods for direct business and are based on reports received from ceding
companies for reinsurance.

(e) Unpaid loss and loss adjustment expenses:
Unpaid loss and loss adjustment expenses include an amount determined from individual case
estimates and loss reports and an amount, based on past experience, for losses incurred but not
reported. Such liabilities are necessarily based on assumptions and estimates and while
management believes the amount is adequate, the ultimate liability may be in excess of or less
than the amount provided. The methods for making such estimates and for establishing the
resulting liabilities are reviewed and any adjustments are reflected in the period determined.

See independent accountant’'s compilation report.
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LEAGUE ASSOCIATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2021 and 2020 (Unaudited) and September 30, 2021 (Audited)

Summary of significant accounting policies: (Continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

(i

Reinsurance:
In the normal course of operation, the Pool seeks to reduce the loss that may arise from events
that cause unfavorable underwriting results by reinsuring certain levels of risk in various areas of
exposure with other insurance enterprises or reinsurers. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are
estimated in a manner consistent with the reinsurance policy.

Income taxes:
The Pool is exempt under Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, no provision for
income taxes is required and the Pool is not required to file any returns or reports with the Internal
Revenue Service related to income taxes. '

Management estimates:
Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those estimates
and assumptions may affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenses. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Risks and uncertainties:

In March 2020, the United States declared a national emergency related to the rapidly spreading
coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak. The Pool invests in various securities as part of its ongoing
operations and is exposed to economic and financial market risks. Events that result from the
COVID-19 pandemic may have a material impact on the valuation of the Pool's investments.
Additionally, financial performance will depend on certain developments, including the duration and
spread of the outbreak and its impact on the members. COVID-19 may have an effect on the
financial position of the Pool.

NLC Mutual Insurance Company:

The Pool joined the NLC Mutual Insurance Company (NLC) as of October 1, 2002. NLC is a mutual
insurance company, formed with the assistance of the National League of Cities in 1986.

Each entity is charged a capitalization fee based on a percentage of premiums. The Pool contributed a
total of $377,664, which is reflected on NL.C's financial statements as member surplus. In addition, NLC
allocates a portion of their net income to the member surplus each year. As a mutual company, NLC
returns earnings that are not needed to pay claims and the expenses of operations to the members in the
form of dividends. NLC paid dividends of $0 (December 31, 2021) and $106,110 (December 31, 2020).
The total member surplus reflected on NLC's financials for LARM were $2,664,703 (December 31, 2021)
and $2,267,029 (December 31, 2020).

The Nebraska Department of Insurance classifies this investment as non-admitted as it is not easily
liguidated into cash. '

Cash on deposit and investments:

Cash on deposit, which includes cash in checking accounts, certificates of deposit with original maturities of
one year or less, and money market deposit accounts are carried at cost, which approximates market value.
The Pool maintains its cash on deposit in financial institutions that are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000.

Long term investments are investments with original maturities of more than one year. Included in long term
investments are certificates of deposit and governmental agency bonds. Certificates of deposit are carried
at cost, which approximates market value. Statutory accounting principles require that bonds be reported
at amortized cost.

See independent accountant’'s compilation report.
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LEAGUE ASSOCIATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2021 and 2020 (Unaudited) and September 30, 2021 (Audited)

(3) Cash on deposit and investments: (Continued)
Statutes authorize the Pool to invest in bank certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements collateralized by
U.S. government and government-guaranteed obligations, or U.S. agency and instrumentality obligations
and mutual funds that invest in these investments.

For purposes of this footnote, the cost basis does not include checks issued and outstanding.

The Pool's cash and investment balances were as follows:

At December 31, 2021
Cash on deposit
Short-term investments
Long-term investments

At December 31, 2020
Cash on deposit
Short-term investments
Long-term investments

At September 30, 2021
Cash on deposit
Short-term investments
Long-term investments

$

Cost
Insured or
Direct U.S.
Government Uninsured Total

250,000 5,172,882 5,422,882
16,230,413 - 16,230,413
16,480,413 5,172,882 21,653,295
250,000 2,090,056 2,340,056
1,749,766 - 1,749,766
14,838,156 - 14,838,156
16,837,922 2,090,056 18,927,978
250,000 1,821,297 2,071,297
13,242,300 - 13,242,300
13,492,300 1,821,297 15,313,597

The Pool has adopted Statement of Statutory Accounting Principles (SSAP) No. 100, Fair Value. This
standard defines fair value as the price that would be received from selling an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. When determining
the fair value measurements for assets and liabilities required to be recorded at fair value, the Pool considers
the primary or most advantageous market in which it would transact and considers assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, such as inherent risk, transfer restrictions and risk

of nonperformance.

The Pool classified its investments based upon an established fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. SSAP 100 describes a fair value hierarchy based on
three levels of inputs, of which the first two are considered observable and the last unobservable, that may

be used to measure fair value, which are the following:

Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs other than Level 1 that are observabie, either directly or indirectly; such as
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active; or
other inputs that can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full

term of the assets or liabilities.

e Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are

significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

See independent accountant's compilation report.
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LEAGUE ASSOCIATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2021 and 2020 (Unaudited) and September 30, 2021 (Audited)

(3) Cash on deposit and investments: (Continued)
The asset or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.

Bonds — Mortgage and Other Asset Backed Bonds: Valued based on Residential Mortgage
Backed Securities modeling file provided by FINRA. The prepayment assumptions used
for single class and multi-class mortgage backed/asset backed securities were obtained
from broker/dealer survey values. These assumptions are consistent with the current
interest rate and economic environment.

December 31, 2021

Less Than 12 Months Greater Than 12 Months Total
Estimated  Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized
Bonds: Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
U.S. Governments $ - - 4,491,723 21,401 4,491,723 21,401
Special revenue and - - 11,296,970 196,076 11,296,970 196,076

special assessment
obligations and all non-
guaranteed obligations
of agencies and
authorities of
governments and their
political subdivisions
Industrial and miscellaneous - - - - - -
unaffiliated

Total bonds -

15,788,693 217,477 15,788,693 217,477

Total temporarily
impaired securites  $ -

15,788,693 217,477 15,788,693 217,477

The amortized cost and estimated statutory fair value of bonds at December 31, 2021, by contractual
maturity, are shown below. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers
may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. Bonds not
due at a single maturity date have been included in the table below in the year of final maturity.

Estimated
Amortized Statutory
Cost Fair Value

Due in one year or less $ - -
Due after one year through five years 12,982,027 12,848,815
Due after five years through ten years 2,998,737 2,939,878

Due after ten years

$ 15,080,764 15,788,693

See independent accountant’'s compilation report.
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LEAGUE ASSOCIATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2021 and 2020 (Unaudited) and September 30, 2021 (Audited)

3) Cash on deposit and investments: (Continued)
December 31, 2020

Less Than 12 Months Greater Than 12 Months Total

Estimated  Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized

Bonds: Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
U.S. Governments $ 999,860 - 801,713 - 1,801,573 -
Special revenue and 751,110 - 13,607,132 2,953 14,358,242 2,953

special assessment
obligations and all non-
guaranteed obligations
of agencies and
authorities of
governments and their
political subdivisions
Industrial and miscellaneous - - - - - -

unaffiliated
Total bonds 1,750,970 - 14,408,845 2,953 16,159,815 2,953
Total temporarily

impaired securites $ 1,750,970 - 14,408,845 2,953 16,169,815 2,953

The amortized cost and estimated statutory fair value of bonds at December 31, 2020, by contractual maturity,
are shown below. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have
the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. Bonds not due at a single
maturity date have been included in the table below in the year of final maturity.

Estimated

Amortized Statutory

Cost Fair Value
Due in one year or less $ 1,749,766 1,750,970
Due after one year through five years 11,840,213 11,908,695
Due after five years through ten years 2,498,418 2,500,150

Due after ten years

$ 16,088,397 16,159,815

See independent accountant’'s compilation report.
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LEAGUE ASSOCIATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2021 and 2020 (Unaudited) and September 30, 2021 (Audited)

(3) Cash on deposit and investments: (Continued)
September 30, 2021

Less Than 12 Months Greater Than 12 Months Total
Estimated  Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized
Bonds: Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
U.S. Governments $ - - 1,533,288 2,649 1,533,288 2,649
Special revenue and - - 11,416,055 76,748 11,416,055 76,748

special assessment
obligations and all non-
guaranteed obligations
of agencies and
authorities of
governments and their
political subdivisions
Industrial and miscellaneous - - - - -

unaffiliated
Total bonds - - 12,949,343 79,397 12,949,343 79,397
Total temporarily

impaired securities $ - - 12,949,343 79,397 12,949,343 79,397

The amortized cost and estimated statutory fair value of bonds at September 30, 2021, by contractual maturity,
are shown below. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have
the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. Bonds not due at a single
maturity date have been included in the table below in the year of final maturity.

Estimated
Amortized Statutory
Cost Fair Value

Due in one year or less $ - -
Due after one year through five years 9,994,027 9,973,825
Due after five years through ten years 2,998,657 2,975,518

Due after ten years

$ 12,992,684 12,949,343

The Pool regularly reviews its investment portfolio for factors that may indicate that a decline in fair value of an
investment is other than temporary. Based on an evaluation of the prospects of the issuers, including, but not
limited to 1) the Pool’s intentions and ability to hold the investments; 2) the length of time and the magnitude
of the unrealized loss; 3) the credit ratings of the issuers of the investments, and 4) other information specific
to the issuer, the Pool has concluded that any declines in the fair values of the Pool's investments in bonds at
December 31, 2021 and 2020 and September 30, 2021 are temporary and are presented on the following
page.

See independent accountant’s compilation report.
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LEAGUE ASSOCIATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2021 and 2020 (Unaudited) and September 30, 2021 (Audited)

(3) Cash on deposit and investments: (Continued)
The cost, gross unrealized gains, gross unrealized losses and estimated fair values are as follows:

December 31, 2021 | Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Obligations of U.S. Government
sponsored enterprises $ 15,980,764 25,406 217,477 15,788,693
Total $ 15,980,764 25,406 217,477 15,788,693
December 31, 2020 Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Obiligations of U.S. Government
sponsored enterprises $ 16,088,398 74,370 2,953 16,159,815
Total $ 16,088,398 74,370 2,953 16,159,815
September 30, 2021 Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Obligations of U.S. Government
sponsored enterprises $ 12,992,684 36,056 79,397 12,949,343
Total $ 12,992,684 36,056 79,397 12,949,343

The statement value and estimated fair value of financial instruments at December 31, 2021 and 2020
and September 30, 2021 are as follows:
December 31, 2021
Statement Estimated
Financial assets: Value Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Bonds $ 15,980,764 15,788,693 - 15,788,693 -
Cash on deposit
(including certificates

of deposit) 5,074,488 5,071,001 4,824,488 246,513 -
Investment income

due and accrued 20,444 20,444 20,444 - -

Total $ 21,07569 20,880,138 4,844,932 16,035,206 -

See independent accountant’'s compilation report.
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LEAGUE ASSOCIATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2021 and 2020 (Unaudited) and September 30, 2021 (Audited)
(3) Cash on deposit and investments: (Continued)
December 31, 2020

Statement Estimated
Financial assets: Value Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Bonds $ 16,087,922 16,159,815 - 16,159,815 -
Cash on deposit
(including certificates

of deposit) 2,515,341 2,518,114 2,015,341 502,773 -
Investment income

due and accrued 26,684 26,684 26,684 - -

Total $ 18,629,947 18,704,613 2,042,025 16,662,588 -

September 30, 2021
Statement Estimated
Financial assets: Value Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Bonds $ 12,992,683 12,949,343 - 12,949,343 -
Cash on deposit
(including certificates

of deposit) 2,192,315 2,189,995 1,942,315 247,680 -
Investment income

due and accrued 15,485 15,485 15,485 - -

Total $ 15,200,483 15,154,823 1,957,800 13,197,023 -

(4) Related party transactions:
LARM contracted with the League of Nebraska Municipalities for office space and miscellaneous
administrative services. The total amount paid to the League of Nebraska Municipalities was $26,546
(December 31, 2021), $32,526 (December 31, 2020), and 91,149 (September 30, 2021). The total amount
of payables to the League of Nebraska Municipalities was $280 (December 31, 2021), $0 (December 31,
2020), and $2,541 (September 30, 2021).

(5) Reinsurance recoverables:
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated based upon assumptions consistent with those used
in establishing the liabilities related to the underlying reinsured coverage document. The Pool's
management believes the recoverables are appropriately established. The Pool had reinsurance
recoverable amounts from seven third-party reinsurers.

December 31, December 31,  September 30,
2021 2020 2021
Contributions:
Direct _ $ 2,835,160 2,442 551 9,889,689
Ceded (865,766) (657,480) (2,874,577)
Net contributions earned 3 1,969,394 1,785,071 7,015,112
Losses:
Direct $ 891,365 711,351 3,635,453
Ceded (327,570) 176,157 (477,631)
Net losses incurred 3 563,795 887,508 3,157,822
See independent accountant's compilation report.
13

/8



®)

(6)

(7)

LEAGUE ASSOCIATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2021 and 2020 (Unaudited) and September 30, 2021 (Audited)

Reinsurance recoverables: (Continued)

The Pool has recorded reinsurance recoverables on paid losses from reinsurance companies of
$1,301,776 (December 31, 2021), $2,034,310 (December 31, 2020), and $780,964 (September 30,
2021).

The Pool has recorded reinsurance recoverables on unpaid loss and loss adjustment expenses payable
of $4,134,291 (December 31, 2021), $5,379,674 (December 31, 2020), and $4,673,899 (September 30,
2021).

The Pool has entered into quota share, stop loss and per occurrence reinsurance agreements. As part
of a reinsurance agreement, the Pool has withheld $25,000 from the balance payable to a reinsurer. At
December 31, 2021 and 2020 and September 30, 2021, the Pool had the funds withheld recorded as a
liability.

The accompanying financial statements reflect the financial position and results of operations net of
related reinsurance. To the extent that any reinsuring companies are unable to meet their obligations
under the reinsurance agreements, the Pool would remain liable.

Self-insured retention:

The Pool retains responsibility for the payment of claims within specified self-insured retention limits prior
to the application of coverage provided by the reinsurance contracts and excess insurance contracts.

The per-claim retention limit for the current coverage was as follows:

$ 300,000 peroccurrence General Liability, Auto Liability, Police, Errors and Omissions
$ 300,000 peroccurrence Public Official’s Liability

$ 100,000 perloss Property, Auto Physical Damage

$ 450,000 peroccurrence Wind and Hail Damage

$ 750,000 perlocation and loss Workers' Compensation

$ 10,000  per occurrence Boiler and Machinery

$ 50,000 per occurrence Cyber

$ 10,000  per occurrence Terrorism

From July 1, 2019 to July 1, 2020 the Property, Auto Physical Damage per-claim retention limit was
$200,000 and Wind and Hail Damage per-claim retention limit was $300,000, plus a $300,000 corridor
deductible.

Retrospective assessments and credits:

Nine months following the close of the fiscal year and at annual intervals thereafter, the Pool may
recalculate each member’s retrospective premium or premium credit for the year.

No dividends were declared for the periods ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

See independent accountant's compilation report.
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LEAGUE ASSOCIATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2021 and 2020 (Unaudited) and September 30, 2021 (Audited)
(8) Surplus:
Assets are reported under statutory accounting on an admitted assets basis. The non-admitted assets
are excluded through a charge against surplus.
The portion of surplus represented or reduced by the following items are as follows:

December 31, December 31,  September 30,

2021 2020 2021
Non-admitted assets:

Accounts receivable over

90 days past due $ - - -
Agents balances receivable over

90 days past due - - -
Investment in NLC 2,664,703 2,267,029 2,664,703

$ 2,664,703 2,267,029 2,664,703

(9) Commitments and contingencies:
From time to time, the Pool is involved in pending and threatened litigation in the normal course of
business in which claims for monetary damages are asserted. In the opinion of management, the ultimate
liability, if any, arising from such pending or threatened litigation is not expected to have a material effect
on the results of operations, liability, or financial position of the Pool.

(10) Financial statement presentation:
Amounts for December 31, 2020 and September 30, 2021 have been restated in some instances fo
conform with current statement presentation.

(11) Subsequent events:

The Pool evaluated subsequent events through February 15, 2022. There were no subsequent events
that require disclosure and/or adjustments.

See independent accountant’'s compilation report.
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/" Certified Public Acountants
Thomas, Kunc & Black, LLP

Independent Accountant's Compilation Report
on Supplemental Information

To the Board of Directors
League Association of Risk Management
Lincoln, Nebraska

The December 31, 2021 and 2020 supplementary information contained in the Reconciliation of Unpaid
Claims is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management. The information was subject to our
compilation engagement. We have not audited or reviewed the supplementary information and do not
express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any form of assurance on such supplementary information.

The September 30, 2021 supplementary information contained in the Reconciliation of Unpaid Claim
Liabilities is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The information was subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. Our report stated that the information was fairly stated in ail material respects
in relation to the financial statements as a whole based upon the statutory basis of accounting. We have
not performed any auditing procedures on the supplementary information since November 30, 2021.

Lincoln, Nebraska i e f{"‘"\(’; o &M; L
, Gl

February 15, 2022
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LEAGUE ASSOCIATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT
Reconciliation of Unpaid Claim Liabilities

For the periods ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
and the year ended September 30, 2021

Unpaid claims and claims adjustment expenses
at beginning of period

Incurred claims and claims adjustment expenses:
Provision for insured events of current policy year
Increase/(decrease) in provision in insured events

of prior policy years

Total incurred claims and
claims adjustment expenses

Payments:
Claims and claims adjustment expenses attributable
to insured events of the current policy year
Claims and claims adjustment expenses attributable
to insured events of prior policy years

Total payments

Total unpaid claims and claims adjustment expenses
at end of period

Year
Three Months Ended Ended
December 31, December 31,  September 30,
2021 2020 2021
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
$ 7,246,215 6,203,649 6,203,649
1,022,500 932,500 5,044,642
(7,848) 65,228 (111,094)
1,014,652 997,728 4,933,548
81,760 95,732 1,313,253
1,166,107 918,112 2,577,729
1,247,867 1,013,844 3,890,982
$ 7,013,000 6,187,533 7,246,215

See independent accountant’s compilation report on supplement information.
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Overview of the
Property Market

U.S. 2021 Billion-Dollar Weather and Climate Disasters

Central Severe Weather  Midwest Derecho and North Central

Western Widfires @ July 811 Tomado Outbreak  Severe Weather
2021 December 15 August 10-13
0 Central Severe Weather
o o June 24-26
Ohio Valley Hall Storms.
@ June 17-18
California Flooding 0 Southeast, Central
and Severe Weather a Tomado Outbreak
January 24-29
Westem Drought
and Heat Wave N
2021 S
Texas and Oklahoma / “‘) o

December 10
and Severe \Weather
Severe Weather / o
@ Winter Storm and Cold Wave Hurricane Nichoias Flooding Hurricane ida

March 27-28
5 August 16-18

Eastern Severe Weather
7
Southeast Tornadoes
6 March 24-25
W Tropical Storm Fred
Apri 27-28 / T o .—\
Tropical Storm Elsa
2 Southern Tomadoes and July 7-9
/ %2 :;:ds‘?f:'; l Southeast Severe Weather o
May 2-4
Northwest, Central, Eastem [ Louisiana ay2

February 10-19 September 14-18 May 17-18  August 29-September 1
This map denotes the approximate kocation for sech of the 20 separate billion-dollar weather and climate dissstes that impacied the United States in 2021

CAT Losses - Key market driver continues to be Cat losses across the US
impacting insureds even if no losses. This includes Wildfire, Flooding and
Convective Storm (wind/hail) prone areas. Wind/Hail exposed risks now
viewed by underwriters as a greater risk than hurricane/coastal/named
storm. 2021 will likely be the 4" worst loss year ever

Investment Income - Lower investment income has led to increased
underwriter scrutiny

Reduced Capacity - Standard carriers continue to reduce their capacity by
not offering large ground up limits, forcing brokers to build capacity
through multiple carriers. Corporate mandates and insurance treaties limit
the ability for many carriers to write difficult exposures.

Valuation - Carriers carefully scrutinizing risk — including reviewing TIV to
ensure valuations are adequate. Indications are a 5% - 20% trending
increase is likely in 2022

Rate Increases - Rates up significantly over the last 24-36 months. Market
now showing signs that it is stabilizing, but significant CAT claims could
result in a continued hard market

Exclusions - Exclusions included across all markets for COVID and Cyber.
Terrorism — market remains stable with abundant capacity. Cyber exclusion
buyback option is latest trend

sAlliant 8 5



Insured Losses (Billions)
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Six most severe Cat Loss Years on Record (all recent)

1980-2021 Year-to-Date United States Billion—Dollar Disaster Event Cost (CPI-Adjusted)
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Insured catastrophe losses YTD ($bn)
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Population Growth and Bullseye Effect

1950

Rural [ Exurban Suburban P urban < TOrnado Scenario

After Ashley et al. (2014)
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* Labor Shortages, Material Cost, Inflation, Supply
chain issues driving up total insurable values and
claims cost

 Marshall and Swift —19.7%
e FM Global —18.5%

* Travelers 7%-10%

* Majority of Markets 5-10%

* Making no change will not be acceptable
 Don’t want to get to far behind
e Appraisals

Trending
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Estimated global damage from ransomware.

2018

Overview of the

Cyber Market

2019

2020

Reduced Capacity — Significant capacity has withdrawn from the market

New Submissions — Few carriers are entertaining new business and
insurers are re-underwriting their books of business, shedding accounts
with poor controls, and actively deleveraging their books of business.

Ransomware - cyber losses from ransomware are systemic and continue to
be problematic

Internal Controls - Underwriters are examining internal controls, and very
technical underwriting for this product line

Significant rate strengthening - structural amendments to programs, and
coverage limitations are common for accounts viewed as not having basic
or poor IT hygiene

Co-Insurance - leading carriers are pushing for possible 50% co-insurance

Retentions — continued pressure on primary retentions and waiting period
for Bl losses

Public Entity — amongst the hardest hit due to lack of privacy and security
information and large amounts of data. Limited markets and most forced
to restructure their programs.

Pricing - due to uptick in claims, significant pricing increases in 2022

sAlliant 9 1



State of the Cyber Market:
Insurance Companies’ Perspective/Feedback

Top 10 cyber insurance carriers (controls about 70 - 75% of the

marketplace) all report an overwhelming increase in ransomware claims

e No industry class was spared

e Public Entity was the most successfully targeted sector in terms of penetration by the
attackers and frequency

e Amongst the least prepared due to older software/computer equipment, lack of
training, low IT security budgets

The Public Entity sector is now being viewed very closely by Insurance

Company management, and continuingto tighten

e Especially for large public entities and JPAs/Pools/Public Entities

e Many markets no longer writing new Public Entity cyber
sAlliant 92



Minimum Standards

Minimum Privacy and Security Needed for Coverage in Marketplace

e Multi Factor Authentication — 100% Implemented

* Endpoint protection, detection, and response product implemented
enterprise wide with 24/7/365 response

* Remote Desktop Protocol connections enabled

* Backups

* Planning and Training

e Critical and high severity patches installed within 1-7 days

 Adequate end of life software

Without good controls, coverage is extremely limited!

sAlliant 9 3
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Billions

Overview of the

Casualty Market

CalendarYear

Reduced Capacity - reduced capacity and some reinsurer withdrawals
have been significant over the past two years

Social inflation - driving up liability verdicts and settlements

Litigation Financing - continues to drive large claims and 68% of firms are
using itin 2021

Underwriter Scrutiny — reinsurers are seeking to grow prudently and are
maintaining a disciplined, conservative underwriter approach.

Hyper Social Inflation — “A Texas jury awarded $300 billion to the family
of a teen and her grandmother, who were killed in a 2017 crash with a
drunk driver” This type of verdict is meant to send a message to others.

Labor Shortage - everyone is doing more with less

Rate Increases - rate pressure has continued but not at the same rate as
seen in 2020 and 2021

Exclusions — continued restrictions surrounding sexual abuse, Wildfire
Exclusions, COVID, cyber, and opioids

sAlliant 9 4



The Changing Legal Environment

o[c

Anchoring: “Jackpot Justice”

Median, 50 Largest Jury Verdicts Percent of US Law Firms Using Litigation Financing
Litigation is a financeable asset.
60 - 54.33 of USLaw Firms
50 -
40% -
41.75 ° 36%
2 40 .
S 170 30.74 30% 4
s 30 - :
v 2000 -
20 -
10 4 10% - 7%
0 - 0% T 1
2014 2015 2016 2017 2013 2017

Sources: Swiss Re Economic Insights, Burford Capital.
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AlG

2015 (S Millions): 25
2020 ($ Millions):5

Berkley

2015 ($ Millions): 5
2020 ($ Millions): 5

s

LVERESN

2015 (S Millions): 5
2020 ($ Millions): 5

2015 ($ Millions): 10
2020 (S Millions):5

CALLIED

2015 (S Millions): 10
2020 ($ Millions): 5

BRIT

2015 ($ Millions): 10
2020 (S Millions): 5

GENESIS

2015 (S Millions): 5
2020 ($ Millions): 3

Munich RE

2015 ($ Millions): 20
2020 (S Millions): 10

2015 (S Millions) Total

Sample Market Capacity Reductions

'A AmTrust

2015 (S Millions): 10
2020 ($ Millions): 5

2015 ($ Millions): 10
2020 ($ Millions): 10

GREAMERICAN
INSURANCE GROUP

2015 (S Millions): 10
2020 ($ Millions): 5

<@ OLD REPUBLIC INSURANCE GROUP

2015 ($ Millions): 10
2020 (S Millions): 5

ARGONAUT

2015 (S Millions): 10
2020 ($ Millions): 2

8}
{2 civicRisk
Mutual

2015 ($ Millions): 10
2020 (S Millions): 2

M IRONSHORE.

A Liberty Mutual Company

2015 (S Millions): 10
2020 ($ Millions): 5

2015 ($ Millions): 10
2020 (S Millions): 5

2020 (S Millions) Total

83
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Businesses in the future as set forth in the Settlement Agreement between the Parties attached
hereto as Exhibit 8 (the “Settlement Agreement™).

18. The Church may begin to use the New Building for Church Purposes as soon as
one of the two Commercial Businesses begins to Operate, so long as the second Commercial
Business begins to Operate within twelve (12) months of the first day the Church uses the New
Building for Church Purposes. Thereafter, the Church may continue to use the New Building for
Church Purposes so long as it Operates two Commercial Businesses in the spaces indicated as a
café and a bookstore on Exhibit 3 in accordance with the terms of this Consent Decree and the
Settlement Agreement and the subparts to this Paragraph:

a. The Church will Operate two Commercial Businesses in the New Building
for ten (10) years (the “Term™). The Term will begin the first day one of the two Commercial
Businesses begins to Operate as long as the second Commercial Business begins to Operate
within twelve (12) months of that day, otherwise the Term will begin the first day the second
Commercial Business begins to Operate.

b. During the Term, in addition to Operating Commercial Businesses in the
spaces indicated as a café and a bookstore on Exhibit 3, the Church may use those same spaces
for Church Purposes, as well. If during the Term the Church ceases to Operate a Commercial
Business in one of the spaces indicated as a café and a bookstore on Exhibit 3: 1) the Church
will be unable to use that space until a Commercial Business resumes Operation in that space,
except the Church can use the Church’s Main Street entrance for entering and exiting, etc., and it
can use the bathrooms; provided, however, that if the Church nevertheless uses the space for any
purpose before it resumes Operation of a Commercial Business in that space, such use shall

constitute a breach of this Consent Decree and of any permit issued for the New Building
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17th

February, 2022.

BY I1HE CUURIL!

Lok

'Hon. Brian C. Buescher
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RELEASE & SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

The undersigned (“Claimants”), state and a gree to the following terms:

1. The “Claimants,” undersigned, are: Traci Hansen and Kurt Hansen (the “undersigned™),
individually, and asmotherand father, respectively, and asnaturalguardians of SN - 1 inor,
(“Minor”). The Claimants sign this Release on each individual’s behalf as well as on behalf of Minor, by
virtue of the authority granted to them by Order of the Greeley County Court, Nebraska incorporated by
reference.

2. Claimants, individually and on behalf of her their respective heirs, successors and
assigns, and Claimants, on behalf of Minor _, and her heirs, successors and assigns, enter
into this Agreement, in consideration of the payment of Two Hundred Twenty Five Thousand Dollars
($225,000.00), made payable to the Trust Account of Vince Powers, their lawyer, and do hereby fully
release and forever discharge the following “Released Parties:”

a. Village of Wolbach, Nebraska, including all of its employees, officers, directors, elected officials,
and agents, including all subsidiary, parent, and affiliate entities;

b. the League Association of Risk Management (LARM) and Sedgwick Claims Management
Services, Inc and its affiliates, and each of their officers, directors, employees, successors and
assigns, (collectively, the “I.{eleased Parties™),

from any and all liability for all claims arising from the incident that occurred on or about July 16,2016,
involving S 4[| from a diving board at the Village community swimming pool (“Incident”),
This Release of liability includes all common law, statutory, and other causes of action, and all iability, of
any kind or nature whatsoever, arising under any theory of recovery or right of action based upon any
theory of recovery whatsoever, arising in any way out of the Incident, including any claim for damages,
pain, suffering, anguish, loss of consortium, loss of services, claims of bystander liability, emotional
distress, claims for harm or injury of any kind, including claims for dama ges of any sort, attorney’s fees, or
costs, whether such damages are now known, unknown or to be incurred in the future. The undersigned
specifically understands that no one, including the Minor on whose behalf this is signed, may pursue any

claim arising out of the Incident ever again and acknowledge that this is part of the benefit derived by this

full and finalresolution ofall disputes.
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3. Claimants are solely responsible for any and all tax liability related to this payment and

will defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Released Parties from any such tax liability.

4, Claimants recognize that the Released Parties may comply with any pertinent Open
Records Act.
5. Claimants agree the lawsuit captioned as, SIS, 4 )10 by and through

her Mother and Next Best Friend, Traci Lynn Hansen, v. The Village of Wolbach, Nebraska, Case No. CI
20-1, filed in the District Court of Greeley County, Nebraska, will be dismissed with prejudice, as soon as
practicable following the execution of all Releases and upon paymentbeingmade.

6. This Release is executed as a compromise settlement of a disputed claim. The Released
Parties deny liability concerning the Incident, and this Release does not constitute an admission of liability.
No otherpromises have been made by the Released Parties.

7. Claimants represent that they do not know of any person or entity that has paid any
amount on his behalf that would entitle anyone to recover as a lienholder or subrogee against the Released
Parties related to the injuries claimed by the Minor. If such lienholder, subrogee, or any person/entity with
a third party interest exists, Claimants agree to satisfy those third-party interests out of the settlement
proceeds and furtheragrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Released Parties for anyclaims or
interests that are asserted related to same. Such indemnification shall include, without limitation, any and
all attomey fees, court costs, and any and all other costs and expenses, Claimants further represent that
they hasnot assigned his claim to any otherperson.

8. Claimants are executing this Release solely upon their own respective knowledge, belief,
and judgmentand notupon any representation made by the Released Parties. Claimants acknowledge that
they have each had the opportunity to consult with an attomney of their choice.

9. Claimants represents that that the Minor is not currently receiving Medicare benefits and
that Medicare hasnot made any conditionalpayments on their behaf related to their claims in this matter.
Claimants do not anticipate any future Medicare-eligible expenses related to any injuries for which a claim
has been made. Because no future Medicare-eligible expenses are anticipated, no part of the settlement is

being set aside for Medicare. Claimants agree to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Released
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Parties from any interest asserted by Medicare. Such indemnification shall include, without limitation, any

and all attorney fees, court costs, and any and allother costs and expenses.

10. Claimants agree to satisfy any and all interests asserted by the Nebraska Depaitment of
Human Services and/or Medicaid. Claimants agree to hold in trust any amounts claimed by Medicaid or
any other lien holders until such claims are resolved. Claimant further agrees to defend, indemnify and
hold harmless the Released Parties from any interest asserted by Nebraska Department of Human Services,
Such indemnification shall include, without limitation, any and allattorney fees, court costs, and any and
all othercosts and expenses.

11, This Release constitutes the entire a greement between Claimants and the Released
Parties. It supersedes all prior Releases and understandings, whether oral or written, relating to Claimants’
alleged damagesand the injury related to the Incident.

12, It is the intent of Claimants and the Released Parties to end any dispute between them
pertaining to the matters described in this Release. The terms, provisions, representations, and remedies
contained in this Release shall be enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by Nebraska law. If any term
of this Release is found to be invalid or unenforceable, then such term shall be construed in a manner
permitting its enforcement to the fullest extent allowed by law. In any case, the remaining provisions of
this Release other than those which have been held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, shali not be affected
or impaired and shall remain in full force and effect. This Release will not be construed either in favor of
one party or againstone party, but rather pursuant to the fair and reasonable interpretation of the language
used.

13, ‘Claimants verify they are able to read and speak English. Claimants, individually and as

parents and natural guardians of the minor, affirm that, in entering this Agreement, are protecting the best

interests ofthe Minor.

CAUTION: THIS IS A RELEASE. READ BEFORE SIGN]NG.‘
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have hereunto set my band and seal this </} day of ,44;' /2021,

Signed in the presence of:

Z]/ﬂ,a{b\b,d, A Wiaba i

Witness

L _.;/ " /— P .

A (/Z(TS % AL RAYS) (¥
Traci Hansen, < §
Individually and as Mother and Natural Guardian of the Minor, S NNEER

IN ' WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 5 g day of /VOV 2021,

Signed in the presence of:

Kzrz&ul,d/_ Prsbias”

Witness
i
= ~ .
4»// R '
~Kurt Hansen,

Individually and as Father and Natural Guardian of the Minor, SRS

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this day of

, 20

Agreed to in form and content
by the Village of Wolbach, Nebraska,
as reflected by the signature below of the following Individual, authorized to sign this;

'5@0% '\\J\SD(\L MMH

Printed Name and Title
For the Village of Wolbach, Nebraska

St R elor

Signature (above)

joonnQ - Spreyony eijeys - Ik WV 9T 11 *12/1/21
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RESOLUTION NO. 404/ - 9

BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS BY THE CHAIRMAN AND THE VILLAGE
BOARD OF THE VILLAGE OF WOLBACH, NEBRASKA:

WHEREAS, the Village of Wolbach, desires to enter into a Release and
Settlement Agreement regarding the pending matter Cl 20-1 in the District Court of
Greeley County, Nebraska: and

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the parties to compromise and settle the claim
against the Village of Wolbach; and

WHEREAS, the Village of Wolbach after due consideration desires to approve the
Release and Settlement Agreement to compromise and settle the claim against the
Village of Wolbach.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Release and Settlement Agreement to
compromise and settle the claim in Cl 20-1 in the District Court of Greeley County,
Nebraska against the Village of Wolbach.

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board Chairman and Village Clerk are authorized
to sign said document in order to bind the Village.

BY ORDER OF THE CHAIRMAN AND VILLAGE BOARD OF THE VILLAGE OF
WOLBACH, NEBRASKA this __“7*" day of December, 2021.

ATTEST: VILLAGE OF WOLBACH:
I by f(tﬁé/)il@m BY. < <Y S/ /. A A=)
Village Clérk Chairman

The foregoing resolution was presented and after discussion, it was moved by
Ebvcwn and seconded by huuKeysiewoic 2 that said Resolution be adopted,
and upon roll call vote, the Village Board voted as follows:

AYESiLLZ\S}n P::v‘uum, éuﬂ it quC\n ‘ L&u&ke §1eciol_2
NAYS: None .
ABSENT: Nowe .

The Chairman then declared said motion duly carried and said Resolution adopted
this _") ¥day of December, 2021.
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Minutes of the Village Board of Wolbach
Kind of Meeting: Regular Meeting Place: City Hall Date: December 7, 2021
Present. Brown, Lukasiewicz, Nelson, Ryan, Swett  Absent: None

The regular meeting of the Village Board of Wolbach was called to order at 7:00 p.m. with five
members present. Chairman Nelson stated this was an open meeting of the Wolbach Village
Board and the poster is displayed at the back of the room.

Unfinished Business:

Motion by Brown, seconded by Lukasiewicz to approve the minutes of the November regular
meeting. Roll call all aye. Motion carried.

Tabled Playground Equipment.

Tabled Camper Site Costs/Fire Pits.

Tabled Kingwood Street to Highway Repair.

Tabled Pool Renovation/Splash Pad: fence repairs to begin December 8, 2021.

Discussion was held on a new roof for the water reservoir and insulation which has been done.
Motion by Swett seconded by Lukasiewicz to go into executive session at 7:08 P.M. to discuss
pending litigation. Roll call vote all aye; Motion carried. Motion by Lukasiewicz seconded by
Brown to close executive session with no action taken and return to regular session at 7:15 P.M.
Roll call vote all aye; Motion carried

Discussion was held on the air pump for the pond with no action taken.

Discussion was held on the culvert on Stringtown Road with no action taken.

There was no Unfinished business.

New Business:

Discussion was held on the contract for the lease of the football field for 2022 No action taken.
Discussion was held on removing sludge from the sludge pit at the sewer pit. No action taken.
Discussion was held on health/vision/dental insurance for the Village Clerk. No action taken.
Motion by Swett seconded by Brown to sign Resolution 2021-8 for Year End Certification of the
City Street superintendent. Roll call vote all aye; motion carried.

Motion by Brown seconded by Lukasiewicz to sign Resolution 2021-9 Authorizing Signature on
pending litigation. Roll call vote all aye; motion carried.

Motion by Lukasiewicz seconded by Brown to approve the SDL for Trivia Night on New Year's
Eve at the Community Center. Roll call vote all aye, motion carried.

Motion by Lukasiewicz seconded by Brown to appoint Shelby Steenson as the Village
Clerk/Treasurer. Roll call vote all aye; motion carried.

Motion by Brown seconded by Swett to appoint the Law Office of Eurek and Peterson to
represent the Village of Wolbach as the Village Law Firm. Roll call vote all aye; motion carried.
Motion by Swett, seconded by Lukasiewicz to appoint Reed A. Miller as the Special
Engineer/Street Superintendent for the Village of Wolbach. Roll call vote all aye; motion carried.
Motion by Brown seconded by Lukasiewicz to appoint Robert Absalom as the Utilities
Superintendent for Water/Sewer/Streets for the Village of Wolbach. Roll call vote all aye;
motion carried.

Motion by Swett seconded by Brown to appoint Shelby Steenson as the Code Enforcement
Officer for the Village of Wolbach. Roll call vote all aye; motion carried.
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Motion by Brown seconded by Swett to appoint Roger Lukasiewicz as the Building Inspector for
the Village of Wolbach. Roll call vote: Brown, aye; Nelson, aye: Ryan, aye; Swett, aye;
Lukasiewicz, abstained. Motion carried.

Motion by Swett, seconded by Brown to appoint Shelby Steenson as the Animal Control Officer
for the Village of Wolbach. Roll call vote all aye; motion carried.

Motion by Lukasiewicz seconded by Brown to keep the Newspaper Publication with the St. Paul
Newspaper as is. Roll call vote all aye; motion carried.

Discussion was held regarding new rates for Village Utilities for 2022. No action taken.

Motion by Lukasiewicz, seconded by Swett to adjourn the meeting at 7:48 p.m. Roll call all Aye;
Motion carried.

Shelby Steenson
Village Clerk
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